GRAND RARIDS-KENT COUNTY

B B S
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
NVENTION, 5SHOW & SPORTE FACILITIES

ENTERTAINMENT, CO

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, June 26, 2002
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
County Administration Building Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
I Call to Order
II. Approve the Minutes of May 22, 2002 Board Meeting Action
Convention
Arena II1. Public Comment
Authority
IV. Presentation — as of publication, none planned
John Logie,
Chairman V. DeVos Place Construction Update - Erhardt/Hunt Information
Lew Chamberlin
Clif Charles VI. Committee Reports
David Frey a. Building Committee
Steven Heacock i. Approve Request to DDA for Action
Birgit Klohs Additional Funding
Joseph Tomoselli b. Operations and Marketing Committee Information
- CVB Update
c. Finance Committee
i. Approval of Paid Invoices Action
ii. Approval of SMG Financial Reports Action
for period ending May 31, 2002
1ii. Approval of CAA Financial Report Action

for period ending May 31, 2002

VII. Approve Amendment No. 1 to Construction Manager Action
Agreement Regarding Guaranteed Maximum Price

VIII. Approve FY 2003 Operating/Capital Replacement

and Administrative Budgets Action
IX. Approve Extension of Bookkeeping Services Agreement Action
X. Approve Extension of Payroll Services Agreement Action
VAN ANDEL
ARENA
Van Andel Arena
Grand Center
130 Fulton West 245 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503 Grand Rapids, MI 49503
616.742.6600 616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590



XI. SMG Report Information
- Facilities Calendar

XII. Other Business

XIII. Next Meeting Date - Wednesday, August 28, 2002, 7:30 a.m., Kent County
Administration Building, Commission Board Room

XIV. Adjournment



Item I1

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Call to Order

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, May 22, 2002

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. Chairman Logie presided
and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance

Members Present:  John Logie, Chairman
Clif Charles
David Frey
Steve Heacock
Birgit Klohs
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: Lew Chamberlin

Staff/Others: Matt Barnes Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Robert DuHadway DK Security
Joe Erhardt Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Jim Gray CAA Owner Representative
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Jack Lane Broadway Theater Guild
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Jack Naudi The Grand Rapids Press
Bill Sewall Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Jay Silha Broadway Theater Guild
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Al Vanderberg Kent County
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Richard Wendt CAA Attorney
Robert White Grand Rapids
Steve Wilson CVB

Tim Wondergem

Wondergem Consulting

IL. Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the April 24,
2002 meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 22, 2002 — Page 2

III. Public Comment
None.

IV. Presentation — Jack Lane and Jay Silha, Broadway Theater Guild

Mr. Lane announced that the first show to open with the new DeVos Performance Hall lobby
would be Blast, which runs from May 28 — June 2, 2002. The Broadway Theater Guild (BTG)
was established in 1988, taking over for Ken Shaw Productions. The BTG is a 501(c)(3) non-
profit organization, which is unusual since most theater guilds are for-profit organizations. The
BTG offers six to eight shows each season, with eight performances for each production.
Together with the other arts tenants, BTG has a $1 million annual economic impact on
downtown. The BTG draws patrons from out of state and 16 counties in West Michigan.

The BTG experienced a financial crisis and reorganized its board of directors. The board
includes Harvey Gainey, Steve Wilson, Timothy Pietryga, Michael Bennett, Father Ron
Hutchinson, Ann Marie young, R. Malcolm Cumming, Thomas Wesholski, and Peter Cook. In
October 2001, Harvey Gainey was selected as board chairman. On his own accord, Mr. Gainey
hired a development company to analyze and survey the BTG. The results indicated there is
equity in the BTG name and BTG is a symbol of community vibrancy. The board has enacted
business changes to keep the organization afloat: seek outside sources of income to cover
expenses; establish grant giving program; maintain long-term debt at a manageable level. Beene
Garter is conducting a thorough review BTG’s finances and accounting practices. The BTG
recently filed its Form 990 and has complied with the Attorney General’s request to be brought
current under state law. The board anticipates a break-even budget for the new fiscal year,
which will begin in July.

Season subscriptions are important to the economic viability of BTG. BTG conducted a survey
of non-renewals for the 2002-2003 season. Out of 600 surveys mailed, BTG received 146
responses. Of those who responded, 41% indicated the main reason for not renewing is
unavailability on show dates. BTG contends that events are scheduled around holidays when
people are busy or out of town. Mr. Logie countered that his family returns home during the
holidays in anticipation of attending a BTG show. BTG is working with SMG and the other arts
groups for the flexibility to book important shows during multiple weeks. BTG also would like
full and early participation in calendar development.

BTG is serious about its 15-year old mission to bring the best of Broadway to Grand Rapids and
West Michigan at affordable prices. In fulfillment of this mission, BTG has applied for
foundation and corporate funding to initiate the following programs:

Kids on Broadway. BTG would subsidize tickets to in-need students and their parties to
attend shows during the year.

Seniors on Broadway. BTG would subsidize tickets and transportation to area seniors
through cooperative agreements with various organizations.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 22, 2002 - Page 3

The Healing Arts. BTG would engage local hospitals, patients, and health professions to
attend Broadway productions at reduced pricing.

Broadway in Education. BTG would provide study guides and master classes to area
schools and discounted tickets to secondary school students.

Mr. Heacock asked if there were any shows with attendance large enough to warrant using the
Van Andel Arena. Mr. Lane could think of only a couple of shows like Starlight Express and
Aida and added that DeVos Performance Hall is a better performance place. Mayor Logie
challenged the BTG to seek out those shows that could utilize the Arena on dark days. Mr.
MacKeigan stated the Arena stage is higher than the DeVos stage and would need extensive
refitting to accommodate a Broadway show. Mayor Logie thanked Mr. Lane and Mr. Silha for
their updates.

V. DeVos Place Construction Update — Joe Erhardt, Bill Sewall

Mr. Erhardt reported that curved truss which forms the skeleton of the building will be
completed this week. The super box truss and steel erection is scheduled to begin in June. The
curtain wall, roofing, glass, and metal panel will begin in August. The bid process for phase III
(banquet hall and Grand Center renovation) begins in June. Compaction grouting in the Grand
Center will occur over the summer. Mr. Sewall reported that restroom construction is in process
along with construction of the basement walls. Next week the floor slabs for the meeting rooms
will be poured. The Exhibit Hall concrete work is on schedule and must advance the steel in
order to stabilize the foundation walls. The Exhibit Hall roof will be installed by the end of this
calendar year. The project continues to remain on schedule and on budget.

VL FY 2002-2003 Operating/Capital Replacement and Administrative Budgets

Finance Committee Chairman Steve Heacock presented the proposed FY 2002-2003 SMG and
CAA budgets. The SMG budgets cover the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena, while the CAA
budget consolidates the SMG budgets and includes administration. The Van Andel Arena is
expected to show a decrease in revenue of approximately $120,000. The Grand Rapids Rampage
will be changing its schedule from May-August to February-May. The change in the Rampage
schedule will make it hard to schedule concerts during what has traditionally been the busiest
time for other events. Mr. MacKeigan stated that the Rampage season would generate just $14
in net revenues for the Arena, while a concert will average a net of $56,000. Mr. Logie stated
that Attorney Wendt is researching the possibility of changing the Rampage contract.

Grand Center revenues are expected to show a decrease of $120,000 mainly due to the Midwest
Woodworkers convention, which is an every-other-year event. The Grand Center is expected to
show an increase in direct expenses due extra maintenance expenses for the new DeVos
Performance Hall lobby and the director of sales position that remained vacant in FY 2002 but is
scheduled to be filled in FY 2003.

Mr. Machuta presented additional information on the proposed Grand Center budget.
Educational seminars are expected to decrease from 23 to 12, but there will be no significant loss
in revenue. Total conventions/tradeshows are expected to increase from 73 to 76. There will be
a minor drop in public shows due to construction and decreased space. The budget forecasts a



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 22, 2002 - Page 4

significant drop in seminars and meetings due to loss of space. DeVos Hall was exceptionally
busy this year and is expected to show a decrease in revenue for FY 02-03. Mr. Logie asked if
SMG were optimistic of the budget from an industry perspective. Mr. MacKeigan responded
that, while the industry has suffered this year, both the Arena and Grand Center fared quite well.
Both facilities received great rankings from industry magazines, several concerts were held at
both venues, promoters are taking notice, and smaller markets have been popular since 9/11.

Ms. Wallace presented the CAA FY 2002 Revised and FY 2003 Proposed Budgets. The
Operating Fund Budget consolidates Grand Center and Van Andel Arena financial activities with
those of the CAA’s administrative and capital replacement reserve accounts for the purpose of
providing a financial perspective for overall CAA operations. Ms. Wallace noted two significant
items in the Operating Budget. The insurance expense has doubled and there will be a transfer of
$727,023 in excess reserves to the capital replacement account. Capital expenditures of
$430,700 include a cyclorama and refinishing the stage floor at DeVos Performance Hall, and
security gate system, hydraulic seating section, skywalk icemelt system, terrazzo floor repair,
hockey glass, floor maintenance equipment, lobby duct painting, and banquet room
refurbishment at the Van Andel Arena. The Construction Fund Budget shows several sources of
revenue including the State of Michigan, interest on investments, CCBA capital contributions,
and transfers from the operating fund. Expenditures are in line with cash flow projections.

Mr. Heacock stated the Finance Committee reviewed the proposed budgets and length and will
approve them next month. Mr. Heacock commended SMG, Robert White, and Jana Wallace for
their exceptional work. Mr. Logie stated that he was pleased to see healthy and conservative
estimates. The CAA Board will approve the budgets at the June meeting.

VII. Committee Reports

Building Committee

Mr. Sommers stated that final touches on the DeVos Performance Hall lobby would be
completed in June. Legal counsel and the owner’s representatives are working with the
construction manager to establish a guaranteed maximum price for phases I and II. The process
should be completed in June. The final guaranteed maximum price for the Grand Center and
Welsh Auditorium should be established in January 2004. The phase III bidding process has
started and should be completed by October. Site work for the river walk will be completed in
late 2004/early 2005. Mr. Sommers stated that the design of river walk has been in question by
city officials. How fast the walk leaves the river level and rises to the plaza versus staying at
river level (which is more expensive) for a longer length. Both designs are handicap accessible.
The DDA has designated about $2.2 million for improvement on river walk. The amount spent
on the area in front of the river far exceeds this amount. The design that goes along the

river edge is $1.5 million more expensive. The preferred design is to construct the river walk so
it gets to the promenade level as quickly as possible, which is less costly and accessible year-
around. Mr. Logie stated that he wants the river walk to be cost effective, but also to meet the
State’s requirements that came with the funding.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 22, 2002 — Page 5

Operations Committee

Mr. Vanderberg reported that spring-cleaning and painting at the Van Andel Arena has begun. At
the Grand Center, the bid process has started for refinishing the DeVos stage floor and for a new
cyclorama. The DeVos Performance Hall lobby is open and operating. People have been so
impressed by its beauty that SMG has been asked to lease the space for dinners, receptions, and
meetings. The logo subcommittee proposed to hire Hanon McKendry to design the DeVos Place
logo at a price not to exceed $7,000. The Committee concurred with the recommendation. The
Grand Rapids Area New Car Dealers Association and ShowSpan would each like to book a date
in 2004 to host the Auto Show. Both groups will make presentations at the June meeting. Mr.
Logie stated that he would like the Committee to resolve the issue at that meeting. However,
should either party disagree with the Committee’s decision, the matter can be appealed to the full
Board. The Amway Grand Plaza Hotel is interested in pursuing a catering and concessions
agreement for the new convention center. Mr. MacKeigan expects to reach conceptual
agreement by August. However, Mr. Logie indicated that the Board needs to be comfortable
with any decision that does not involve a public bid.

Mr. Wilson stated that the CVB is hosting is first spring familiarization tour in conjunction with
the Farmer’s Classic Golf Tournament. The CVB hosted a luncheon for GRACE to discuss the
possibility of booking more religious conferences. The Midwest Woodworkers group remains
interested in Grand Rapids for 2003 and is revisiting the option of using the Arena or multiple
venues around town. Major groups the CVB is working on include Michigan Junior Volleyball
Association, Association of Pet Dog Trainers, American Jail Association, and Association Small
Business Development Centers. The CVB held 19 site inspections and submitted 20 bid
presentations. The CVB attended three major tradeshows and made sales trips to Washington,
D.C., Chicago, and Indianapolis. The CVB is working with Clif Charles to bring back Gordon
Food Service.

Finance Committee

Mr. Heacock presented the Finance Committee report and recommended approval of: (a) paid
invoices, (b) SMG financial reports for period ending April 30, 2002, and (c) CAA financial
report for period ending April 30, 2002.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Heacock, moved to approve (a) payment of invoices
totaling $4,748,566.38, (b) SMG Financial Statements for the Van Andel Arena and Grand
Center for the period ended April 30, 2002, and (c) the Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statements for the period ended April 30, 2002. Motion
carried unanimously.

VII. Approval of Amendment to Construction Manager Agreement

Attorney Richard Wendt recommended approval of Amendment No. 4 to the Construction
Manager Agreement regarding billable rates. Mr. Wendt explained that the new rates are well

within the contracted range of 3-5%. The 4.25% increase includes cost of living and wage
increases.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 22, 2002 — Page 6

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve Amendment No. 4 to the
Construction Manager Agreement. Motion carried unanimously.

IX.  Approval of Directors & Officers Insurance Renewal
The Finance Committee requested approval of the D&O liability insurance renewal. The

premium has increased from $14,850 to $22,000, while the deductible has increased from $5,000
to $15,000.

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve renewal of the Directors &
Officers Liability Insurance Renewal in the amount of $22,000. Motion carried unanimously.

X. SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan reported that the summer promises to be a busy season with the following
events: Incubus, Brooks & Dunn, Blink 182/Green Day, Eagles, Tom Petty, Davenport
commencement, Korn, Cher, Promise Keepers, and the Who.

XI. Other Business

Mr. Logie stated the July CAA meeting will be canceled. Mr. Logie congratulated Press reporter

Jack Naudi on his new position in Indianapolis. The CAA appreciated Jack’s fair and accurate
coverage.

XII. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:15 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs
Recording Secretary



Item V1.a.i.
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

A Rt g R et s e g
L
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORITS FACILITIES

Memorandum

To: CAA Board Members

From: Dale Sommers, Owner Representative
Convention Date: June 20, 2002
Arena
Authority Re: Request to DDA for Additional Funding
John Logie,

Chairman As you know, there is a project shortfall of approximately $13 million. At the June 19,

R Chogerin 2002, CAA Building Committee meeting, members discussed possible sources of funding.
Clif Charles It was suggested that the CAA Board request an additional $5 million from the DDA. The
eiliey DDA will meet on July 10, and the Committee would like a formal request made on that
Steven Heacock

date.
Birgit Klohs

Joseph Tomaselli

GRAND FAFIDS

Van Andel Arena
130 Fulton West

This discussion came about due to a report to the committee. The City, DDA Staff, and
Owner Reps of CAA had met to discuss the Riverfront Development in front of DeVos
Place. The Project presently does not plan or have funds to do the DDA Riverfront Vision.
The City with DDA match has secured an additional $300,000+ of grant funds for the
Riverfront. An additional $700,000+ would still be needed to do the DDA vision.
Discussion has taken place about requesting $700,000 from the DDA for the Riverfront
specifically.

Action requested: Request that the DDA contribute an additional $5 million to be used
within the present scope of the project.

Grand Center
245 Monroe Ave.

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503
616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6197

Grand Rapids, MI 49503
616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6590

M

S o~



BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
June 26, 2002

The New DeVos Performance Hall Lobby addition and renovation has been
completed. In June (during DeVos Hall’s slow time) a seties of code compliance
tequitements will be installed including new stair doots and fire proofing measures.

Steel Setvice Cotp. completed setting the main bent columns in the Grand Gallery,
and is in process of installing the pipe putlins that form the roof structure. Steel
wotk is approximately 90% complete in the Grand Gallery. Concrete slabs on the
elevated floors, stair installation, mechanical piping and ductwork remain the
primary activities in the space. Block walls in the lower level have been
substantially completed.

The Exhibit Hall concrete work continues on schedule as Kent/Tillman installs
patking level and street level slabs along the East and West sides, along with
miscellaneous walls, ramps, shafts, etc.... Andy J. Egan Company is installing
under slab plumbing and ElecTech II is installing floor boxes that will provide
utilities to Exhibitors when complete.

Most recent focus in the Exhibit Hall has been aimed at starting to set the super
box trusses. The trusses are being assembled on the ground in the center of the
space while temporary shoting towers, on the 3 points of the span, were set in
place. Three cranes have been set up to handle the erection.

Phase 3 wotk this month included the bid and award of DeVos Hall stage rigging
upgrades and the Grand Center compaction grouting work aimed at stabilizing the
earth below the foundations and permanently stop the settlement problems that
have plagued the facility for years.



d 2T 3¢ 20/%/9 VO PAUHd

24001 09¢°628$ sselo s,qog X 09¢‘6z SMOPUIA 3133LL sse[O s,qog

%11 296'12$ adL A 00Zvsz$ $300(J POO/\ PUE JIOM[TN MIOM[UN PUSLY,  ZLH6

%11 0056028 sse[o) s,q0g

%83 001°591$ $1d25u0)) uoRINTSUOD) X 000°086°1$ STERRW ST SYIO/ UOI] We( UBA  $9b6

%28 000°00%$ STD 3 000°s8%$ Sugooxdanyg Lexdg uoRINNSUOD) BWNOG  ¢8YG

%z1 00Z°L8¥$ agL X 000°090'+$ s3uMR) » rEalig UORONNSUOD) PUEPAID) €756

%11 9z8°cz$ adyr X 009912$ 12dre) saruedwo)) 31908 $ES6

%11 000002$ s1d2500)) vomonTsUO) A

%1 000°02$ Supme) suRH A 781°0¢8'1$ aUess) pue Auosey Lsuosep wUkT  pGH6

%1 066818 Supme) swsH A

%ZE 0¢Lv1L$ s1daou0) vondNNsUO) A ¥69°652°2$ [[eAUTENY) PUE S[UEJ (B39 S[EIIJ] PUE SSELD) [BIUIANYITY 1816

%€ 189°8Z8 ‘Bupme) swRH X 0ZE$T0 18 Wy3nkag apeIIeN €166

%P 656%09% $901A19G [FIUSWUOIATY 29 UONEMSU] A

2%01 $L1°009°1$ Suiqumiq syooig X

%]} 000,63 qng TGN BORI01J 71 2pedug A

o}o OOm.Nwﬂ uOuunguﬂﬂw mg m~OUc0U dOwEOH M»

%0 001°0+$ Suiquniq ymoN do, X

%0 YA AL vonoAo1g 71 spidey puesH A LY1°10991$ TeSTuBY I vedg (puy 1696

%01 009°1$ $2D1AT2G JUITIF I3 S¥651$ s3um2407) e put dunured $30183099( 9[0D 48] [TS6

%€ S8z'se suoge[relso] 32d1e) YOI X 056°¢L1$ 32dre) 0] 9edre)) vosuyo[ 9766

%G1 005+€$ Jupme) SWH X 16v°c€T$ sSumrR) 2 realsg SANEPOSSY TUSINY  GZS6

%€ 020°6S¥$ adl X

%C 000°5.2$ 993G TeapI X

%L 080°566$ DT Sunednqe Faig 33 L, A 000°01+'¥1$ [931 [eruonng uone10dI0)) DIAING 9IS Z9¥6

%6C 126298 S[EIS]] [PMSTPU] UESTYIIN X 0009128 [°91G [eradnng Sunasuiduy 2 Aiddng 9335 1996

%L1 000°L$ Lroosepy dep o1g X o

%2 0001$ Axuosey gd A 16L°€9$ Aruosep porg Lruose 2quid8mg  [Gp6

%001 89¢02$ XN PN X 89¢°0z$ 3 [FPW-VO-$9¥IS XY PG

%001 806°292$ UOROAIY 991G 7Y A 8062923 Teqg UOmOAIY PAS VY Zhb6

%S1 p16°6€T'1$ o UBILL, A S9L°9¢€Z°8$ A31500) MU A JUTO[ UBWRL/3UY  9€HG

%1 000°81$ $901A79G UORANTSTUOY) OlER X

%Z1 000°00Z$ £1ddng Sunoenuo) warua X 00SvL9°1$ Jpomyrey 031810 TTH6

%11 000°LL$ Junoenuo) sumg A 02+°669% uonfowag sorwedwo) P$Id  1Zh6

%€l 000°c$ - Suneaeoxq 5997 A

%2 00s$ Tesodsi(] paoueapy A 005°cz$ spomyreq eH soAd ‘Buneaeoxy TweNhg 9146
% junoury J0)OEeNU0Y) sapunuoddp | wunowry sz0/ Jo uondudsay I0pU3/ /3010ENU0OQNG apo~

HAMN/TINW agM/d9nN JdM/d9N | wenuo) 107

HLVA OL AHIVAYV SLOVILNOODUNS
AIVININAS NOLLVdIDILYVd F9A/HIN



N £56'7588% 0zzEN, vary keg
N 12esL$ Suid8ng [PH soA>q s,0lpmag s3oog
N S02'599% suomnIed 3[qexdQ ewdmby paouespy 2956
N 180°c€$ 93eudg £4qqo] sopaq sudig qore[ (556
N 9¥8°c89% preog 39peay sowonyed 6556
N Sov'6rIs spo( Zutpeo] @ ssoo( Jumo) Supuey panddy €866
N ziL'10e 100 Yr] [EORIA Auedwo) 300 PEAYIAQ  66¥6
N S1£°0828 woudmby Suppreg foyegogyery, 7856
N 86+°8zZ8 jusmdmby 301419 pooyg RIUIG-PIOPAS /856
N 9z¢TTTTY SpPUEd TP dnoxo apis1aany  $8¥6
N 057°9¢S$ 1addag - aremprely 300Qq UBIOW V'S 20S6
N So10ze 18 Bugooy Bugooy vIspo  L8¥6
N 08¢‘c8s 919710U0Y) 15T U] ‘SIMISNPUT UOD-SSANS  Hp6
N 519202°2¢ SI01e[EDSH PUE SIOILASTH uonezodron) J01BAS[H IP[PUTYIS /€96
N 0£¥'59$ 1oqddng - sremprer] 300Q URUHOW V'S 2056
N 6eL'6S s100(J PEaYI2AQ Agedwo) 100 pEaYIanO 1056
N $98°6128 e/ UTeaIn)) sse[o) ssndinuy st 0056
N 09L°LS$ Sugooy Jugooy TR Z8%6
N ors'szi$ SpPUEd [N S[EA] 79 SSE[D) [EIIANYPTY  [8Y6
N 00z‘62$ 3onddng - spommA s1onpoid pooy A3EA PUBID 1116
N oriI‘ivs [933 ssa[uTeag YeI) VOI[ PUINOD)  Z9+6
N 19Zp85% 197ddng - suocisswry fuedwon suoig 1WA ZSH6
N 000°0vZ$ STre 23330U0) UORONNSUOY) I9ATY PUBID)  [Hh6
N 000°L08‘+$ SUOSSTED) UODEPUNOg 35D ¢7H6
N 0021228 SIMJ-TUN] fuedwo) @ pPyIeg  L1¥6
uonedpnred M /A9 J0j AarunizoddQ INoyIm §19eNUO;
% unowy 3030€1U0)) saprunuoddp | junoury o yo uonduosaq JOpua A /1030eNU0dqNg apoH
Fgm/ddnN Jam /a9 d9M/d9N | wenuo) 150D
%91 6L6°L09°01$ LOYTST'89$  TVIOL
%S1 19920618 omdAT J0[AET, X yry'¥89°T1$ [ea1m23[g Y229 1£96
%Ll 009'95$ dunured BOWIPW X L9¥'p15$ S3uE2A0)) e\ PUE SUBUTE] Bunured H®H  6€56
%001 Sop'ss Junureq sur]-oid X SSH8 Juidmg Jupjred 3unureq suTT-01d  ZEH6
%08 ¥S0'v12$ L, ISIMPIN A 006892 LY, JMureIa) »u] adze) vosuyo[  9zS6
% unouwry J019ENU0D) saprunuoddp | 3unowry yrox Jo uonduoasag Iopua A /3030EN3U0OQNG apo)
qFam /9N gJgM /9N J9M /39N 310enUODH 180D




Item VI.c.i.

VENMERANDUN

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS

DATE: June 11, 2002

TO: Steve Heacock
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Finance Committee Chair

FROM: Jana M. Wallace W
Fiscal Services Analyst

SUBJECT: Monthly Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures are summarized below by fund.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
May 28, 2002 $ 55638.49 $ 473,683.95
June 14, 2002 55,650.21 3,528,551.71
Payroll — 05/17/2002 2,093.00 --

Payroll — 05/31/2002 2,012.50 e

Disbursements by Fund $ 115,394.20 $4,002,235.66

Total funds expended by the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority during
the period May 17 through June 14, 2002, were $4,117,629.86.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Attachments



202250 mull six'Aedojsadioauieed

sasuadxa uononJIsuos-uop / bunesado = O
sasuadxa pajeja) UORINIISUOD = 9

Juswfed J0j passadoid SadlOAU| [eJoL  ph'2Ze'ees  $

Junoddy Bunesedo woiy Juswihed Joj paRilqgng SaI0AU| [BJOL  61'889'SS  $

JUNO22Y UOHIONIISUOD WOL) JuslAed 10} palILIqNS SIJI0AU| [BJ0)  S6'E89'C.Y $

$99|AIag [eds1d L3I0 Aq paplwigng S8DJOAU} - SBDI0AU] [B101-qNS  61'889'SS  §
Newaped) aoe|d SOA( JO Juawysi|qelse al1 saolnes [eba7  2002/LE/€0 00°€C d171 PPN( @ SSOIOION JoUIBAA o)
MEWSPE.J) BUSIY [OPUY UBA JO JudLysi|qelsd a1 seojaes eBa  Z00Z/Le/l0 $8'8/S°C d71 PPNr @ SSOI0ION JauleM O
yiewsapel) a9ejd SOAS( JO Juswysi|ge)se a1 saoiAss eba Z00Z/1E/L0 09°1L0.'C d171 PPN '@ SSOJOION JSUIBAA 0
200z ‘I aunp - JabeuBw dANEASIUIWPE JO) SHIBUS] BOURINSU|  ZOOZ/PL/ISO  95'822 yiesH Aioud O
lloiAed 20721150 J04 squuoo sakojdwayiahkoldws - ¥L0p SIOW ulwpy  200Z/L1L/SO 00°0¥2 uonesodio) juawainsy YINOI o]
lloAed 20/€0/50 104 SqUU0d sekojdwayieholdwa - yL0p sJBW ulwpy  2002/€0/S0 LL°0€2 uonesodio juawaidy YINOI 0
llo1Aed Z0/61/%0 104 SquU0d sakojdwasholdws - YLOp SJBW ulWpY  2002/61/70 LL°0€T uopelodio) juswainey YINDI 0]
lloJAed Z0/S0/+0 104 SqUIU0D 8akojdwayiahkojdwa - YLOp SJBW ulwpyY  200Z/S0/70 LL°0€T uonesodio) juswalay YINOI o)
200Z |udy - Jejue) pueld) Joj SBOIAISS [BOLROSIT  Z00Z/L0/S0  LL'PLL'OC ABieuz siswnsuoy O
£0/52/7-20/52/y - fdnod Ajjiqe)) s1eoyjo pue si0j0aiIQ  2002/Se/v0 0000022 $ MBS JWUWN sty Jaybejleo runypy O

$901MI9G [edstd A)1D Aq paniwqgng sadjoAu|

JeBeue j09foid Aq papiwgng sadl0AU| - [B3OL-NS  S6'€89ELY $
2002 Iudy - eAnejuasaldal sjoolyose as-uQ  200Z/SL/S0 00°091'8L 3v aAissaiboid 0
Z00Z Iudy - solydelb jejuswiuoniAug - Z00Z/SL/SO  LL'G8Z'6L 3v anissalboid 0
2002 |udy - seiossa00. / We Jouajul |[eH SduBwIOpad SOASQ  Z00Z/PL/ISO  L6VEL'L 3V anissaiboud 0
2002 |udy - sebueyo pajsanbasssumQ  2002/7L/ISO 99°GL9'vC 3v anissaiboid 0
2002 |udy - saoiAes ubisap [einjos)UdY  Z00Z/PL/SO  LZ206'LYE gy ansssaiboild O
2002 ‘9l - € Ae - Buidwnp |ios pajeulweluo)  Z002/02/S0  S8'CEL'Y liypue fjunod emeno o)
2002/90/50 niy} sabieyd auoyd Jejnjjeo saAjejuasaldal sjoUMO  2002/L0/S0  8G°TS) suojEedIUNWWOY [91XaN 0
2002 |udy - seoiaies aseyd uolonisuo)  2002/t7L/S0 1L°98G‘Cy ou| sjueynsuog Bunsa s(euaje 0
2002 [1dY - US|oM\ 8 Jejua puesD 31 S8DIAISS [BOIUYDSI09D  2002/7L/SO  08°€00°C au| sjueynsuo9 Buysa s(euarew 0
G Juawfed - 2o)ysNr JO ||leH Ul jJuswajeqe sojsaqsy  Z00zZ/Le/L0 000vi'6L  $ ou| S8JIAISG [BJUBWUOIIAUT uoldWeYD 0

JobBeuep 100foud Aq papiwgng sad10AU|
P3AIadal §99IAI9S | palinboe sjeuajew Jo uonduasaQ aeq junowy o9Aed
9DI0AU|

Koljo4 Buidsexpoog juaung ay) Aq pazuoyny se ‘200z ‘8z Aep uo juswAed Jo} passad0ld S3210AU]| JO IS
ALRIOHLINY VN3NV / NOILNIANOD ALNNOD LN3X - SAIdVY ANVYO



201 190 Ml six-Aedolsedlonuieed

sasuadxa Buijesado 7 UoIONIISUOI-UON = O
sasuadxa pajejal UOHONIISUOD 18JUd)) UONUSAUOYD) = D

uswed Joj passad0id S8dI0AU| {el0L  Z6°L0Z'¥8S'E $
Wnod2oy Bupessdo woiy Juswied 103 papjuqng sedl0AY| je30L  L2°0S9'SS  $
JUNO2JY UOHONAISUOY WOy Juswed 10} papiwigng SadloAU| [ejoL  L.L'LGS'8ZS'E $
sedjAleg [easid AD Aq peapiwqgng S8dj0AU| - SBDl0AU| [Bl0L-qNS  1L2°0S9'SS  $
Buneaw g0z ‘2Z ke Joj syoeus / sebesansg  g00Z/22/SO  89°L2 aomeg 890D joH pidey O
Z00Z Ael - ssonues wesjs eualy  200Z/LE/SO 1€'.,28'6 SHOM 2lqnd Jo3dag Awnog ey O
2002 Ae|y - sedlIes Wes)s Jajua) pueld  Z00Z/LE/SO  ¥S'ZSL'vL SYOM Jldnd joideg Aunog sy O
2002 Ael - saolues weals yemAyS  Z00Z/LE/S0 BS'SLL SHOM dlignd Joideq Aunog ey O
llo:Aed z0/1€/G0 404 squu0d eakoidweyiskojdwe - yL0p sJ6w uwiwpy  2002/1€/50 LL°0€C uopesodio) Juswaiey VINOI o
200 isnbny - sunp - Jsjua) puels) Joj auj Jejem uonoajoud aild  Z00Z/0€/S0  S2O€ Jainseas) Ao spidey puer O
200Z Ae| - 100U puUBIS) 10} SBOIISS JBMSS pUB JSJlBM  2002/€2/S0 L1'825') Janseas] AuQ spidey puely O
200z 1snbnyy - aunp - J8Juas) puels) Joj sul| Jajem uondsjoid a4 2002/0€/S0 68y Jainseas] Ayo spidey puesd (o)
2002 1snbny - aunp - Jajus) puelis) Joj auj| Jajem uonoajoid a4 2002/0£/S0 6£'8Y Jainseas) Ayo spidey puels (o)
2002 Ae - eualy Joj seoles JBJeM  2002/0€/S0 #8601 Janseal] AuD spidey puess O
2002 A - BUBLY 1O} SBIINISS JOMSS pue JBJBA 200¢2/0€/S0 0£°962'1L Jainseas] Ao spidey puels o)
2002 isnbny - sunp - Jajua) puels) Joj auy sajem uolosjoid alld  Z00Z/0E/SO  6E'SY Jainseal) AyD spidey puesy O
2002 isnbny - aunp - Jajua?) puels) Jo} aul Jajem uonosajold a4 2002/0¢/S0 GZ'0¢ Jainseas) Ayo spidey puels 0
2002 Aey - JoBeuely sAlessiulLpY Joj SROIMISS UOISIA  Z00Z/LE/SO  00°LET ‘g0 yebuogd 3suey O
2002 ludy - siepjew |essusb a1 saoies [eBa ] Z00Z/LE/S0 00°SOP OTd wbupuosunpig O
2002 Iudy - Juswaaibe uoissaguod a1 sadjes (6o 200Z/LE/SO  00°80% OTd Wbupmuosudpia O
200T AB - YlemAxg Joj saoInss [oUj0RIT  200Z/P2/SO0 8P LLb'L ABisugy s;swnsuo)y O
Z00Z Ae| - eualy Joj SBOIAISS [BOLIOBIT  Z002/82/S0  26'S80°+2 ABisugy s;ewnsuo) O
2002 '0Z Ae|y papus pouad Joj seolnies Buideayoog  200Z/L2/S0  00°GS.L $ d1lispegeusag O
sagiMeg jeasty AiD Aq pepiwqng SadloAu|
leBeuely 308foid Aq papjwiqng sadjoAu| - [eJ0L-GNS |2°1S5'82S°E $
200Z Aey - seoiues Juswabeuew oafoid  Z00Z/LE/S0 00°089°LL Holeq ‘s;iewwog 9
2002 '¥2 - £ Aey - Buidwnp 10s pajeuiweiuod  200Z/€0/90 LL'OLY'S (lypueq] unop emeno 9
2002 Ae - seonues Juswabeuew josfold  2002/50/90 000L2'}L ou Buginsuop Aexn 4 O
8| #juswihed ssaiboid J0j obeuie}eYy  Z00Z/1€/50 00'909'65 Junodoy abeulelay Yv/0 ON-HO )
[eJauab / |99)s / uojEPUNOD) - UORONUISUOD ') # Jwd ssaiBold  ZOOZ/LE/SO  00'S8S'OVE'S $ BINUSA JUIOL v/ JUnH -Jples3 D
Jabeuepy y90foad Aq pajjiugng S3dtOAU|
PoAI9Dad SBIAISS | palinboe sjesjew Jo uondliosag ajeq unowy aaled
9210AU|

Aoljod Buidesypoog juaiing ay} Aq pazuoyiny Se ‘Z00Z ‘#1L dunpf uo JuswAed Joj passadold SaJI0AU] JO IS
ALROHLNY YNIYVY / NOLLNIANOD ALNNOD LN3X - SAIdVY ANVYO



Distribution:

Item VI.c.ii.

GRAND CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

DeVos Performance Hall Lobby

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2002

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority

Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney
John Szudzik
Richard MacKeigan
Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity




NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

“*ESTIMATED*
MANAGEMENT FEE CALCULATION

BENCHMARK REVENUES
PROJECTED REVENUES

PROJECTED INCREASE

20% OF FIRST $500,000
25% OF $500,000 AND ABOVE

TOTAL INCENTIVE FEE
TOTAL BASE F/Y 2002

TOTAL FEE FOR F/Y 2002

©® A

1,769,531
2,155,288

385,757

77,151

77,151
225,000

302,151

GRAND CENTER
ROLLING FORECAST - YE 6/30/02

SUMMARY
TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

366 19 385 318 67
473,124 19,620 492,744 494,970 (2,226)
1,401,473 55,930 1,457,103 1,133,612 323,491
569,348 10,225 579,573 499,919 79,654
1,970,521 66,156 2,036,676 1,633,531 403,145
13,412 5,200 118,612 136,000 {17.388)
2,083,033 71,355 2,155,268 1,769,531 385,757
83,983 7.214 91,197 81,433 (9,764)
120,530 11,580 132,110 145,356 13,246
37,564 4,260 41,824 139,854 98,030
469,229 45,781 515,010 445,575 (69,435)
333,963 37,457 371,420 417,843 46,423
45,107 6,004 51,111 60,682 9,57
933,576 105,964 1,039,540 984,945 (54,595)
2,023,950 218,260 2,242,212 2,275,688 33,476
59,981 (146,908) (86,924) (506,157) 419,233
47,841 - 47,841 173,850 (126,008)
12,140 {146,905) (134,765) (680,007) 545,242

Comments:

May marks the end of the busy season for the Grand Center, and with much

greater success than originally budgeted. The revised forecast shows the

Grand Center will lose a little over $80,000 for the fiscal year, which is an increase
from the April forecast. This is due to a more aggressive (and more labor intensive)
approach to both custodial and maintenance projects.

General Manhger



GRAND CENTER
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MAY 31, 2002

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the month ending
and the YTD ending May 31, 2002, compared to budget and to the

prior year:
MONTH May May May

Actual Budget FY 2001
Number of Events 29 30 35
Attendance 28,859 44,900 41,466
Direct Event Income $76,245 $80,874 $90,354
Ancillary Income 35,565 39,069 33,464
Other Income 4,860 11,333 5,033
Indirect Expenses (236,776) (189,642) (169,124)
Net Income ($120,105) ($58,366) ($40,273)
YTD YTD 2002 YTD 2002 YTD 2001

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 366 310 376
Attendance 473,124 484,720 494,876
Direct Event Income 1,401,173 1,117,822 1,395,681
Ancillary Income 569,348 490,800 624,114
Other Income 113,412 124,663 104,593
Indirect Expenses (2,023,952) (2,086,062) (1,946,778)
Net Income $59,981 ($352,777) $177,611
Less Capital ($47,841) ($63,339)
Net Income after Capital $12,140 ($416,116) $177,611

EVENT INCOME

Direct event income performed at expected levels for the month. The original budget
called for Broadway to have a performance, however, it was moved to June. This was

offset by the very successful Harry Connick Jr. concert.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income performed slightly below expected levels for the month. This is mainly due
to the scheduling of Blast in June versus the original expectation of a May event.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than expected levels for the month. This is due to higher
than normal labor expenses for some summer projects, and the accrual of the expected
SMG incentive fee.




EVENT INCOME

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME
SERVICES INCOME

TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME

ANCILLARY INCOME

FOOD & BEVERAGE
NOVELTY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
ELECTRICAL

OTHER ANCILLARY

TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT MANAGEMENT
BOX OFFICE
OVERHEAD

INDIRECT EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME

OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME)

OTHER EXPENSES

NET INCOME (LOSS)

GRAND CENTER
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

----------------- CURRENT- === m=mn=mmmme-=mm=o= m—mcco—cmmmemme=eYTDemmccoecaooanacaean
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

83,029 80,150 87,280 1,365,630 1,099,235 1,370,617
<6,783> 724 3,074 15,543 18,587 25,064
76,245 80,874 90,354 1,401,173 1,117,822 1,395,681
16,091 15,099 14,880 192,568 175,141 255,462
3,650 1,060 676 39,051 17,912 18,785
152 [ 0 8,513 [/} 0
570 660 [ 32,808 19,540 0
15,102 22,250 17,909 296,411 278,207 349,867
35,565 39,069 33,464 569,348 490,800 624,114
111,811 119,943 123,818 1,970,521 1,608,622 2,019,795
4,860 11,333 5,033 113,412 124,663 104,593
116,670 131,276 128,851 2,083,933 1,733,285 2,124,389
9,872 6,786 3,676 83,983 74,646 36,698
13,901 12,114 10,212 120,530 133,254 117,081
3,424 11,653 5,315 37,564 128,183 83,938
42,043 37,131 67,782 469,229 408,441 720,516
58,370 34,820 0 333,963 383,020 0
7,025 5,058 2,828 45,107 55,638 33,322
102,141 82,080 79,311 933,576 902,880 955,223
236,776 189,642 169,124 2,023,952 2,086,062 1,946,778
<120, 105> <58,366> <40,273> 59,981 <352,777> 177,611
0 0 0 47,841 63,339 0
0 0 [ 47,841 63,339 0
<120,105> <58,366> <40,273> 12,140 <416,116> 177,611




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

---------------- CURRENT----===cce-cccucc camcccecc-c-«-YEAR TO DATB---v--~-cccen
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 5,45) 0 1,772 111,923 0 30,213
Stagehands Billed 60,679 70,000 79,486 791,343 577,800 691,236
Security Billed 2,822 2,650 3,755 105,218 90,970 86,964
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 8,332 11,380 12,451 140,199 136,457 126,154
Box Office Billed 1,400 1,500 1,900 24,527 19,700 18,050
Ticketing Service Billed 9,272 7,600 7,362 180,641 127,080 131,285
Utilities Billed 0 (] [¢] 5,470 0 9,315
City Police Fire Billed 496 500 1,039 20,321 15,680 22,148
Traffic Control Billed 299 [ 17 19,138 8,020 12,063
EMT Medical Billed 1,179 1,471 1,438 22,989 21,941 18,814
Cleaning Billed 0 0 0 2,770 0 1,565
Insurance Billed 233 0 0 1,275 0 2,188
Group Sales Commissions Billed [ 0 0 889 0 0
Telephone Billed 335 0 1,077 11,579 150 6,682
Damages Billed 0 0 0 71 0 0
Other Production Billed 3,403 0 3,500 66,763 0 24,689
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 93,902 95,101 113,796 1,505,114 997,798 1,181,364
Advertising Expense 5,451 0 1,182 102,765 4] 29,194
Stagehand Wages 60,375 67,901 74,443 786,803 560,473 649,616
Security Wages ' 0 0 3,755 7,722 2,930 88,025
Contracted Security Expense 2,673 2,650 0 97,511 88,040 0
Ushers & T/T Wages 5,832 7,966 8,715 98,140 95,365 88,308
Ticket Sellers Wages 870 2,088 1,443 17,402 29,388 27,058
Ticket Service Charge Expense 4,856 2,661 3,047 62,102 29,189 35,182
City Police Fire Expense 496 500 1,240 20,321 15,680 22,351
Traffic Control Expense 825 0 523 36,797 15,660 29,948
EMT Medical Expense 90s 1,471 510 16,778 21,941 14,174
Cleaning Wages 11,546 9,140 11,550 152,617 120,545 147,862
Contracted Cleaning Expense 0 0 1] 2,083 0 0
Insurance Expense 55 0 [ 899 0 1,789
Damage Expense 0 0 0 0 0 420
Production Expense 6,802 0 3,913 67,633 0 22,374
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 100,685 94,377 110,722 1,469,571 979,211 1,156,300
NET SERVICE INCOME <6,783> 724 3,074 35,543 18,587 25,064




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,777,213
293,990
88,015

2,159,219

654,676
124,285
363,695

458,507
545,916
12,141

2,159,219

somaasssmaoEocs



GRAND CENTER
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

----------------- CURRENT--~-----ccmcccccnc cccmccnccccrnmncec=Y]D-mmmucrecccnccccnnnn

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 60,101 46,705 28,356 469,525 513,755 323,345
Part-Time 15,051 10,741 10,208 149,334 118,151 136,101
Wages-Trade 98,577 72,348 93,208 1,018,248 795,828 917,282
Auto Expense 1,521 1,771 1,321 16,379 19,481 12,729
Taxes & Benefits 29,422 26,812 26,560 305,951 294,932 267,877

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <93,785> <86,166> <104,625> <1,181,678> <947,826> <1,009,153>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 110,887 72,211 55,028 777,759 794,321 648,182
Contracted Security 4,648 5,200 10,220 49,432 57,200 48,378
Other Contracted Services 186 175 0 1,855 1,925 1,530
Travel & Entertainment 292 766 233 5,696 8,426 3,015
Corporate Travel 454 313 0 2,338 3,443 3,331
Meetings & Conventions o 1,641 0 9,396 18,051 5,017
Dues & Subscriptions 199 141 145 1,528 1,551 1,710
Employee Training ] 767 0 459 8,437 124
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 66 0 110
Computer Expense <468> 5,317 2,924 30,039 58,487 38,071
Professional Fees 1,730 1,667 1,125 18,753 18,337 12,375
Marketing & Advertising <4> 833 0 10,219 9,163 9,348
Box Office Expenses 56 0 9 565 [¢] 168
Small Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 813
Trash Removal 837 2,667 2,458 12,295 29,337 15,513
Equipment Rental 413 350 17 3,084 ' 3,850 4,787
Landscaping 0 1] 0 0 [} 4,045
Snow Removal 0 0 0 169 1] 1,751
Exterminating 375 350 [ 4,433 3,850 5,260
Cleaning 0 625 250 613 6,875 6,473
Construction Costs 0 0 33s 1,350 [ 1,135
Repairs & Maintenance 11,606 8,583 10,554 113,128 94,413 97,390
Supplies 3,178 11,270 17,439 80,461 123,970 135,564
Bank Sexrvice Charges 1,082 625 2,680 11,916 6,875 15,662
Insurance 9,921 8,583 15,520 110,950 94,413 124,195
Other Taxes 0 300 0 0 3,300 2,535
Printing & Stationary 0 916 0 1,224 10,076 2,982
Office Supplies 1,098 625 719 7,427 6,875 7,921
Postage 0 250 276 1,138 2,750 1,643
Parking Expense <929> 1,167 0 18,814 12,837 16,223
Telephone Long Distance 369 2,550 312 27,206 28,050 39,248
Utilities 41,561 43,000 38,176 458,507 473,000 515,225
Base Fee 18,750 18,750 13,169 206,250 206,250 161,238
Incentive Fee 30,535 0 <2,465> 56,885 0 15,818
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 125,889 117,431 114,096 1,246,193 1,291,741 1,298,596
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES . 236,776 189,642 169,124 2,023,952 2,086,062 1,946,778




VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2002

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facliity

Item VI.c.ii.



NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2002

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Benchmark revenues

Final Statement revenues

Projected excess

20% of first $500,000 excess
25% of $500,000 and above

Total Incentive Fee
2002 Base Fee
Total Fee for FY 2002

4,199,913

4,662,462
462,549

92,510

92,510

225,000

317,510

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
128 7 135 118 17
717,264 57,100 774,364 711,300 63,064
1,208,491 135,401 1,343,892 1,077,595 266,297
1,384,425 118,852 1,503,277 1,332,520 170,757
2,592,916 254,253 2,847,169 2,410,115 437,054
1,661,203 154,000 1,815,293 1,609,681 115,612
4,254,209 408,253 4,662,462 4,109,796 552,666
82,821 7.854 90,675 82,334 (8,341)
148,785 12,450 161,235 151,806 (9,429)
173,731 11,478 185,209 147,483 (37,726)
1,009,646 92,450 1,102,096 1,019,556 (82,540)
104,807 11,640 116,447 109,722 (6,725)
96,325 8,845 105,170 114,218 9,048
32,408 3,216 35,621 36,676 1,055
1,206,270 99,280 1,305,550 1,215,202 (90,348)
2,854,789 247,213 3,102,003 2,876,997 (225,006)
1,399,420 161,040 1,660,459 1,232,799 327,660
204,215 204,500 408,715 430,500 21,785
1,195,205 (43,460) 1,151,744 802,299 305,875
Comments:

May continues the successful second half of the fiscal year for the Arena. The
Arena again came in above expected levels for the month as it played host to
the sold out Incubus concert and two nights of well attended Professional Bull

Riders.

The forecast for the balance of the fiscal year shows an increase above the April

expectations as the Arena will host one additional concert (Tom Petty) than

B

originally thought.

e

General Manader

‘irector of Fln



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MAY 31, 2002

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the month ending
and the YTD ending May 31, 2002, compared to budget and to the

prior year:
MONTH May May May

Actual Budget FY 2001
Number of Events 5 6 12
Aftendance 38,202 22,000 63,651
Direct Event Income $153,477 $79,000 $184,376
Ancillary Income 58,225 61,084 118,941
Other Income 163,367 141,640 164,962
Indirect Expenses (263,275) (239,604) (233,573)
Net Income $101,794 $42,120 $234,707
YTD YTD 2002 YTD 2002 YTD 2001

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 128 114 147
Attendance 717,264 684,200 752,749
Direct Event Income 1,208,491 1,041,741 1,428,377
Angcillary Income 1,384,425 1,303,511 1,456,592
Other Income 1,661,293 1,558,040 1,486,884
Indirect Expenses (2,854,789) (2,634,814) (2,807,088)
Net Income $1,399,420 $1,268,478 $1,564,764
Less Capital $204,215 $46,715 $34,600
Net Income after Capital $1,195,205 $1,221,763 $1,530,164

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in above expected levels for the month. This increase was mainly due

to the higher than expected attendance for the Professional Bull Riders event.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in below expected levels for the month. The Incubus concert that
was held was very well attended, it drew a younger crowd resuiting in low F & B per caps.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in above budget for the month. This is due to labor expenses

associated with summer projects.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

----------------- CURRENT- - =~ mmmmmmmmmmmene —mmemaccmaommmeeeYTDmmmmmmammm e m oo oo e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 112,275 108,550 196,833 1,759,009 1,520,045 1,955,630
SERVICES INCOME 41,202 <29,550> <12,457> <550,518> <478,304> <527,253>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 153,477 79,000 184,376 1,208,491 1,041,741 1,428,377
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 37,427 47,150 92,123 1,092,100 1,038,399 1,214,021
NOVELTY 19,057 12,306 24,451 249,241 224,446 209,854
OTHER ANCILLARY 1,740 1,628 2,367 43,085 40,666 32,718
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 58,225 61,084 118,941 1,384,425 1,303,511 1,456,592
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 211,701 140,084 303,317 2,592,916 2,345,252 2,884,969
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 153,367 141,640 164,962 1,661,293 1,558,040 1,486,884
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 365,069 281,724 468,280 4,254,209 3,903,292 4,371,852
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,092 6,861 15,568 82,821 75,471 97,094
FINANCE 15,369 12,650 7,343 148,785 139,150 112,045
MARKETING 14,699 12,145 17,631 173,731 132,765 143,695
LUXURY SEATING 9,283 9,518 8,367 96,325 104,698 91,356
OPERATIONS 110,746 84,962 51,333 1,009,646 934,582 962,942
BOX OFFICE 13,217 9,144 7,015 104,807 100,584 82,066
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 3,536 3,056 1,773 32,405 33,616 32,873
OVERHEAD 87,334 101,268 124,544 1,206,270 1,113,948 1,285,017
INDIRECT EXPENSES 263,275 239,604 233,573 2,854,789 2,634,814 2,807,088
NET OPERATING INCOME 101,794 42,120 234,707 1,399,420 1,268,478 1,564,764
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 135,000 0 4,218 204,215 46,715 34,600
OTHER EXPENSES 135,000 0 4,218 204,215 46,715 34,600

NET INCOME (LOSS) <33,206> 42,120 230,489 1,195,205 1,221,763 1,530,164




Advertising Billed
Sponsorship Income

Labor Billed

Changeover Setup Billed
Stagehands Billed

Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
City Police Fire Billed
EMT Medical Billed
Production Materials Billed
Cleaning Billed

Insurance Billed

Group Sales Commissions Billed
Telephone Billed

Equipment Rental Billed
Damages Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Advertising Expense

Sponsorship Expenses

Labor Wages

Contracted Changeover Setup Expense
Stagehand Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense
Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense

EMT Medical Expense

Contracted Cleaning Expense
Insurance Expense

Allocated Telephone Expense
Equipment Rental Expense
Damage Expense

Production Expense

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

---------------- CURRENT---~w==m==e=ceren wocweeee-nc----YEAR TO DATE---~-----~--~
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
0 ] 25,613 277,081 0 208,116
0 [+] 0 37,000 0 43,248
540 1,080 5,738 19,508 20,030 28,172
7,129 6,900 22,287 133,310 116,800 165,545
15,962 28,000 125,203 425,775 408,400 495,466
10,038 4,600 17,911 185,015 92,200 150,458
4,363 5,750 15,785 133,113 120,900 151,992
387 1,900 1,629 12,345 16,025 22,464
9,108 9,000 33,565 211,185 136,950 161,918
840 1,008 1,456 12,344 8,736 11,707
2,300 500 2,825 25,985 10,910 21,898
0 0 0 205 0 ]
3,682 6,200 16,844 113,336 120,600 130,694
0 [ 0 2,592 0 2,240
280 0 50 3,171 0 7,552
670 900 4,400 24,715 18,175 21,442
0 0 0 0 0 2,975
0 0 0 0 0 610
10,782 4,000 34,809 278,925 169,260 343,152
66,082 69,838 308,115 1,895,604 1,238,986 1,969,649
200 [+] 23,336 305,919 (4] 253,845
0 0 0 2,800 0 13,118
459 918 4,877 16,581 17,027 23,946
<4,092> 14,164 24,267 261,995 195,855 243,884
14,088 27,354 133,393 451,089 449,216 510,313
14,332 8,640 24,796 267,170 152,390 230,090
<12,623> 14,540 23,992 252,752 248,010 298,000
329 (4] 1,384 10,217 0 10,266
8,545 9,000 23,910 188,012 146,700 170,489
840 1,008 1,232 10,944 10,572 9,320
5,262 1,484 2,240 47,412 21,727 16,055
<18,171> 17,837 24,838 274,883 292,093 309,350
0 ] 0 9,219 0 20,553
150 298 1,083 6,070 4,235 5,018
0 0 0 [ 0 967
0 0 0 0 0 387
15,561 4,145 31,225 341,058 179,465 381,303
24,880 99,388 320,572 2,446,122 1,717,290 2,496,902
41,202 <29,550> <12,457> <550,518> <478,304> <527,253>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 5,584,252
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 2,142,123
PREPAID EXPENSES 169,845
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7,896,219

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 7,896,219

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTE PAYABLE 903,513
ACCRUED EXPENSES 344,851
DEFERRED INCOME 964,685
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 4,076,745
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,289,794
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <1,768,769>
FUNDING RECEIVED 535,358
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,644,632
NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,185,205
TOTAL EQUITY 1,606,426

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 7,896,219



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/02

----------------- CURRENT--~==r=cmemeemmmnn wewe—ccucucoemenceeYTDercccccccrrcenanneen

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 60,994 42,706 39,425 487,737 469,766 375,463
Part-Time 6,696 2,230 7,981 70,224 23,700 88,308
Wages-Trade 58,442 68,160 127,969 724,090 749,760 760,538
Auto Expense 777 810 531 8,302 8,910 6,441
Taxes & Benefits 23,912 28,648 34,011 270,070 315,128 252,393

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <29,800> <64,906> <140,911> <585,503> <713,966> <573,723>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 121,021 77,648 69,007 974,920 853,298 909,416
Contracted Security 16,873 16,500 11,332 180,000 181,500 177,596
Contracted Cleaning 4,196 2,000 2,017 24,370 22,000 22,191
Other Contracted Services 0 300 0 3,350 3,300 2,616
Travel & Entertainment 1,095 442 1,725 9,936 4,862 12,174
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 1,884 6,875 4,585
Meetings & Conventions 17 1,083 571 8,431 11,913 2,635
Dues & Subscriptions 0 108 0 3,083 1,188 1,735
Employee Training 1] 975 o] 2,501 10,725 2,538
Computer Expense 1,933 5,317 1,578 80,958 58,487 29,854
Professional Fees 3,064 2,042 1,500 28,394 22,462 20,108
Marketing & Advertising 1,791 7,250 9,354 86,608 79,750 69,552
Box Office Expenses 1,334 0 <62> 1,505 0 <3,617>
Small Equipment 0 0 0 1,687 0 2,143
Trash Removal 1,583 1,250 1,491 15,862 13,750 16,310
Equipment Rental 1,446 650 135 15,863 7,150 15,091
Landscaping 0 292 0 10,257 3,212 2,130
Exterminating [} 333 0 2,475 3,663 2,903
Cleaning 0 450 (4] 2,810 4,950 1,060
Safety Equipment 0 0 0 248 0 0
Repairs & Maintenance 5,784 10,666 1,861 80,074 117,326 88,641
Supplies 19,476 15,091 10,343 199,873 166,001 189,804
Bank Service Charges 419 1,167 2,302 12,261 12,837 12,524
Insurance 6,125 11,512 18,425 115,550 126,632 102,667
Other Taxes 0 300 0 69 3,300 3,062
Printing & Stationary [} 1,917 245 5,375 21,087 11,476
Office Supplies 1,003 1,000 291 15,523 11,000 9,677
Postage 102 1,050 40 6,892 11,550 6,319
Parking Expense 1,510 1,592 1,460 18,104 17,512 17,520
Telephone Long Distance 1,359 4,300 5,810 45,237 47,300 51,104
Utilities 42,680 57,483 57,924 678,510 632,313 703,048
Base Fee 18,750 18,750 21,988 206,250 206,250 238,154
Incentive Fee 15,000 0 14,927 45,000 0 87,854
Depreciation 0 491 0 0 5,401 0
Amortization 0 [} 1,963 5,737 0 21,597
Common Area Expense <3,136> <2,710> <1,572> <28,737> <29,810> <21,393>

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <150> <270> <1,083> <6,070> <2,970> <5,985>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 142,254 161,956 164,566 1,879,868 1,781,516 1,897,672

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 263,275 239,604 233,573 2,854,789 2,634,814 2,807,088




Item VI.c.iii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Eleven Months Ended May 31, 2002

i' BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of cash receipts and disbursements and cash
receipts and disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction account
of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the eleven months ended
May 31, 2002, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services
issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do not include
the cash receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which are
operated by the Authority. The financial statements presented have been prepared on the cash

basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the Authority’'s cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

Poore Hooler e f/

June 12, 2002
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP
S0 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
51U RIRTRE ENON0 F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

MECHIGAN BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAs » FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-26709 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



—“_“_——____“_H
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%

i) BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements
From July 1, 2001 to May 31, 2002

Operating Construction Retainage

Account Account Account
RECEIPTS
Beginning Balance - July 1, 2001 $ 3,578,979.18 $ 5,410,627.09 $ .
State of Michigan - 45,000,000.00 -
CCBA Capital Contributions - 26,143,616.13 -
Interest Deposits 81,814.65 231,921.77 9,387.54
Transfer from Operating Account - 2,000,000.00 -
Transfer from Construction Account - - 2,027,614.00
Miscellaneous Revenue - 23,153.00 -
Facility Operations 1,898,030.06 = -
Total Cash Receipts 5,658,823.89 78,809,317.99 2,037,001.54
DISBURSEMENTS
Checks issued prior months 3,258,508.89 31,073,587.48 -
Checks issued 5/14/02 77,520.36 4,201,494 .12 266,329.00
Checks issued 5/28/02 55,638.49 473,683.95 -
Payroll Expenditures 50,847.92 - -
Expense Reimbursement (3,000.06) (1,220.79) -
Bank fees - (306.34) -
Total Cash Disbursements 3,439,515.60 35,747,238.42 266,329.00
Net Pooled Cash and Investments $ 2,119,308.29 $ 43,062,079.57 $ 1,770,672.54

i BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2001 to May 31, 2002

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations $ 1,695443 $ 1,898,030 $ 237,000 $ -
interest on Investments 100,000 45,632 40,000 36,183
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer 570,357 - (670,357) -
From / (To) Fund Balance - - 530,357 -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,365,800 1,943,662 237,000 36,183
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 20,000 22,004 - -
Bank Fees - - - -
insurance - Property and Liabitity 15,000 24,966 - -
Legal Services 55,000 28,160 - -
Other Contractual Services 8,150 27,883 - -
Facility Management Fees - 161,122 - -
Meeting Expense 650 715 - -
Supplies 1,200 1,122 - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 2,000,000 - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,100,000 2,255,973 - -
Electricity 611,000 651,907 - -
Steam 527,000 415,566 - -
'‘Water and Sewer 67,800 53,860 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,205,800 1,121,333 - -
Building Additions and Improvements - - 225,000 -
racility Equipment Acquisition - - 12,000 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 237,000 -
Employee Wages 50,000 46,231 - -
Employee Benefits 10,000 15,979 - -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 60,000 62,210 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,365,800 3,439,516 237,000 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ (1,495.854) § - $ 36,183
See Comments See Comments
1and 2 1and 2

Comment 1: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the GR-KC Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 27, 2001.

Comment 2: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.

i BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement C

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction)

From July 1, 2001 to May 31, 2002

CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT
Monroe Ave Relocation Convention Center Construction
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
State of Michigan $ 2630697 $ - $ 27,369,303 $ 45,000,000
City / County Bidg Authority Capital Contrib. - 125,883 - 26,017,733
Transfer from Operating Fund - - 1,000,000 2,000,000
Miscellaneous Revenue - 23,153 - -
Interest on Investments 54,830 54,355 445,170 177,567
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,685,527 203,391 28,814,473 73,195,300
DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services 490,000 328,574 6,000,000 4,408,169
Construction Material Testing - - 400,000 560,366
Construction in Progress - GMP 2,175,527 154,243 21,425,973 27,821,948
Sub-total Construction Disbursements 2,665,527 482,817 27,825,973 32,790,483
Bank Fees - - - (306)
Insurance -Property / Liability - - 40,000 42,670
Legal Services 15,000 1,251 50,000 7,697
Project Manager / Owner's Representative - - 285,000 229,459
Other Contractual Services 5,000 50,000 600,000 2,089,373
Sub-total Service Disbursements 20,000 51,251 975,000 2,368,892
Electricity - - - 38,376
Steam - - - 11,877
Water and Sewer - - - 1,869
Sub-total Utility Disbursements - - - 52,122
Advertising / Promotion / Publicity - - 5,000 -
Supplies - - 1,000 S
Postage / Express - - 500 -
Printing and Binding - - 5,000 -
Telephone - - 2,000 1,674
Sub-total Supplies Disbursements - - 13,500 1,674
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,685,527 534,068 28,814,473 35,213,170
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ {330,677) $ - $ 37,982,129
See Comment See Comment

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 27, 2001.

i! BEENE GARTER LLP



GRAND RAPI Item VII

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORIS FACILITIES

Memorandum

To: CAA Board Members

From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
ST Date: June 18, 2002
Arena
Authority Re: Amendment No. 1 to Construction Manager Agreement Regarding

Guaranteed Maximum Price
John Logie,
Chairman

tew Chamberin - The Construction Manager has prepared the attached Guaranteed Maximum Price -
ghi Slisgles Documents. This is the same forntat and content used on the Van Andel Arena.
David Frey

Steven Heacock

s Jim Gray and Dale Sommers, Owner Representatives, have reviewed these documents.
irgit Klohs

ossph TorEsell Attorney Richard Wendt has reviewed and approved for content.
The documents were presented to the CAA Building Committee on June 19, 2002, and the
Committee recommends CAA Board approval.

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me directly at
742-6194. Thank you.

iy,

I A Grand Center
\1/?3?) é:ldiin V"-/eer;? 245 Mo‘nroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503
616.742.6600 616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590



Item VII

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER WITH ERHARDT/HUNT FOR
EXPANSION AND RENOVATION OF THE CONVENTION CENTER,
A/K/A DEVOS PLACE

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember

moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
has previously entered into a Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction
Manager (the "Construction Manager Agreement" or "Agreement") in February, 2001, with
Erhardt/Hunt, a joint venture ("E/H"), for the expansion and renovation of the Convention
Center, a/k/a DeVos Place (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Construction Manager Agreement provides that when the Drawings and
Specifications (as defined in the Agreement) are sufficiently complete, E/H shall propose a
Guaranteed Maximum Price (as defined in the Agreement) (the "GMP") for Phase 1 and Phase 2
(both as defined in the Agreement) of the Project; and

WHEREAS, E/H has proposed Amendment No. 1 to the Construction Manager
Agreement establishing a GMP for Phase 1 and 2 of the Project of $118,054,870 and a
substantial completion date of December 31, 2003; and

WHEREAS, the CAA Board desires to approve and authorize the Amendment in the
form presented at this meeting.

RESOLVED:

GRAPIDS 61448-17 123643



1. That the Amendment is hereby approved and the Chairman of the CAA is
authorized and directed to sign the Amendment for and on behalf of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies and guidelines in conflict
herewith shall be, and the same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

Dated: June 26, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary of the
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a regular
meeting held on June 26, 2002, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to, and
in compliance with, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: June 26, 2002

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 61448-17 123643



Amendment No. 1 to Agreement
: Between Owner and Construction Manager

Pursuant to Paragraph 2.2 of the Agreement, dated February 28, 2001 between Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention Arena
Authority (CAA)(Owner) and Erhardt/Hunt, A Joint Venture (Construction Manager), for Expansion and_Renovation of the

Convention Center(the Project), the Owner and Construction Manager establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time for
the Work as set forth below.
ARTICLE |

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE

The Construction Manager's Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Work, including the estimated Cost of the Work as defined in Article 6

-_

and the Construction Manager's Fee as defined in Article 5, is ®ne Hundred Eighteen Million Fifty-Four Thousand Eight undred
Seventy Dollars ($118,054,870).

This Price is for the performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents listed and attached to this Amendment and
marked Exhibits A through F, as follows:

Exhibit A Drawings, Specifications, addenda and General, Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract on which the
Guaranteed Maximum Price is based, pages 1 through 36 dated May 16, 2002-

Exhibit B Allowance items, pages 1 through 2 dated May 16, 2002

Exhibit C Assumptions and clarifications made in preparing the Guaranteed Maximum Price, pages 1 through 4, dated May_
16, 2002

Exhibit D Completion schedule, pages 1 through 3, dated May 16, 2002

Exhibit E Alternate prices, pages 1 through 1, dated May 16, 2002 APPROVED AS TO FORM

Exhibit F Unit prices, pages 1 through 1, dated May 16, 2002 i 4

ARTICLE 1l 7- . "
CONTRACT TIME I—Uga! Counse! for the

Counveniion/Arena Authority
The date of Substantial Completion established by this Amendment is: December 31, 2003 ’

OWNER CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

BY. ) BY

——lohaH 1ogieChaizman — Michael | Gausden/Project Execuiva
——Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority — Erhardt/Hunt A Joint Veature

DATE DATE

ATTEST ATTEST

© 1997 - THE AMERICAN TNSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 NEW YORR AVENUE, N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006-5292. AlA_DOCUMENT
AIA12//CMC AND AGC DOCUMENT 565 - OWNER-CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AGREEMENT - 1391 EDITION - AIA® - AGC - © 1991 - THE
ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA, 1957 E STREET, N.W. WASHINGTON, D.C., 20006-5209. WARNING: U[llicensed
photocopying violates U.S. copyright laws and is subject to legal prosecution. This document was electronically produced with permission of the
AlA and can be reproduced in accordance with your license without violation until the date of expiration as noted below. User Document: grand

rapidssaia -- 5/16/2002. AlA License Number 1001624, which expires on 2/28/2003.
Electronic Format AlleCMc-lSQlu
X



Grand Rapids Convention Center
Expansion and Renovation

Phase 1 and 2

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)

DeVos Lobby Addition 4,847,644
Grand Gallery and Exhibit Halls 88,230,587
Signage 250,000
General Conditions, Insurance, Permits 17,056,414
110,384,645
Owaner's Contingency 1,000,000
111,384,645
Contractor's Contingency (3.5%) 3,898,463
115,283,108
CM Fee (3.75%) 4,323,117
) 119,606,224
CCIP Deduct :
Lobby Addition (63,485)
Exhibit Halls (1,487,869)
Total GMP - Phase 1 and 2 $118,054,870
Balance to Complete
Site Work 4,225,412
DeVos Hall Renovation 2,113,735
Signage 50,000
Theatrical Rigging 87,000
Grand Center 13,488,980
Signage 200,000
Food Service Equipment NIC
Welsh Ballroom 27,925,075
Signage 250,000
48,340,202
Owner's Contingency 1,190,738
49,530,940
CM Fee (3.75%) 1,857,410
Total Balance to Complete $51,388,350
Total Construction Costs $169,443,220

Erhardt/Hunt, A Joint Venture

5/16/02



eINUBA JUIOF / JUNH 1p/RYI3

ose'sec’ts  $

oLY'L58'}
pepnjou] 10N

dIND Z 8seud Yim pepnjauj

31VNILST NOILONYISNOD V101

824 NO

SjiuLied pUe 8oUBINSU| ‘SUOHIPUCD [@16UD

AUVIAINNS TLVINILST LNIWND0A LNINJOT3AId NOIS3a € ASVHd

NOILVAONZY ANV NOISNVdX3
HILNID NOILNIANOD SAIdVY ANVHO

0v6'0ES 6V Glo0's/L'ge | sil'el8'vl 9£.'062'C Z\w'see'y RloL
(9v9'ces) (86.'v9€E) (569" 11) (gg8'al) (g62'Ob) sypa1d "d’1'0"0 pajedionuy
820°'v8€' Zvo'sse’l LIB'ELL 18620} 62102 KousBupuog uofonIsuc)
8€.'061°1 8cL'061°L AoueBupuoDd sJeumo
000°05.'9 000°000't 000'000°C 000'052 000°'005 uogejessy

- pepnjau| joN jyuewdinb3 esineg poo
000'.8 000°'.8 BuiBbry [eopjeaut
000°'005 000'052 000'002 000'0S ebeubis
000'0S2 000'052 uopelo)say eduesul ysiom

- SeoURMOIN

- 6071 00d
028'206'8E 1£9'089'22 | 86.'988'01 019'2LL) 185295’ ©eoKans
06'882'9 £06'€.9'C zL0'88L') FAYANE> LIT'G1S feoued 91 uoisiaig
ors'esy's g61°'1G€'E 6.8'v¥L'Y 5 69%°L8€E 5 - [eojueysay Gl uoisiAg
LEV'YLO Zv0'LL S¥L'62C 2 069'L0€ z - sweysAg Buikeauc) :p1 uoisiNG

- - - w. - w. - r_o:o?_umcoo _N_Ownw €l uoisiAig
sZLLL sTi'e 000°'S g - M - sBulysjwng :Z| uoisiNg
(114 - ooy = - £ - yuswdinby 11 uoisINg
LWWLLL oLz'Lby 895'90€ ul 6EE'EC pul - sepjepadg 0} UoISIAG
€09'0vE'Y yLE'SYO'T £20'0vE’L m 902'sSE m. - seysiuld :60 uoisiaId
1v8'6£8'} see'siv'l 08E'Z6€ ° gzi'6Z ° - SMOPUIM pue s100Q 80 uoisiAg
2sT'EYY'T €18°'150°C 198'09€ m Z6¥'12 m - uono9)0ld BJNISIOW B feuleyl L0 UoISING
SLL'PP9 142618 €1E'LL} = 165°'L = - sopjse|d pPue SPOOM\ 190 UoIsING
S8y LLS'Y 00S'6PE'Y 006'902 ° 680'GH A - sfeleW G0 uoisiNid
06¥'29P ozy'LLlL 16£'822 61L'29 Kuosep] 0 uoising
951°€09'} 909'28¢'} 055'022 - @jesouo) g0 uolsing
682'228'9 ¥.6'085°C 0EL'SY6 1z2'eve $9E'LF0'E some)iS :Z0 Uoising

uojjeAouay PPV Aqqo
rejoL Ysjom Jsue) pueld | SieH MeN jleH soaeq Yomalig
z00zZ Aen




CRAND p—

v
N

R

CENTER

GRAND CENTER / DEVOS PERFORMANCE HALL

FACILITY BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2003

Distribution;

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

GMe>

An SMG Managed Facllity




SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Highlights
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

Overview

Fiscal year 2003 marks the final budget for the Grand Center as the new
DeVos Place will be in operation during fiscal year 2004.

Income

The Grand Center is expected to show a decrease in revenue of about
$120,000. This is mainly due to the Woodworkers show ($110,000) which
is an every other year event, and an anticipated decrease from the DeVos
Performance Hall.

New events have been booked in the convention center for the coming year,
however, they do not have the economic impact of the Woodworkers,
DeVos Performance Hall has had an exceptional year in F/Y 2002. We are
anticipating another strong year for DeVos Performance hall, budgeted to be
the second best year ever. '

Indirect Expenses

The Grand Center is expected to show an increase in indirect expenses of
just over $180,000 when compared to F/Y 2002.

This expected increase is due to the Director of Sales position ($90,000) that
continues to be open. This position is key to the success of the new facility,
however, is only going to be filled when the right fit seems to have been
made.

The rest of the increase comes in the Event Services department. In F/Y
2002, some positions stayed open due to turnover which caused a savings in
labor of $40,000. In addition, now that the lobby of DeVos Performance
Hall is complete, it is expected that the facility will incur extra custodial
labor and supplies of $45,000, to assure a high facility standard is
maintained.




Tes'eoe)  (iep'ag) (z.6's58)  (68E'v5L)  (92€'62) cLL'vy 266°LEL 126001  (264'vh) 850'91 (610'09)  (ge¥'vi)  (b£8't9)  (oo0'vbr)  (B92’S¥E) (SSO7) SNODNI ALITIOVS 13N
(es9'c8t) vEL'88L'Z  1E8'IGE'C  886'S6) 986'6} 986'C6) 986'G61 986'G64 986’66l 98656} 986'66} 986'G6} 986'G61 986'561 986'S6) SISNIJX3 LOIYIANI TV.LOL
ols's 656'266 6¥0'066 a6b'28 505'28 505'Z8 505'28 605'Z8 505'z8 50528 505'28 505'z8 505'28 505'28 50528 QvaHI3A0
(158°2) vi5'6¥ Sev'lS 8L S8L'y S8L'Y 58L'Y S8’y S8L'Y s8L'b s8l'y S8L'y S8L'y s8l'y S8L'Y 301340 X048
(gzp'coL) 06L'vhe E19'Lyp Y0E'LE Log'se 10e'2¢ 10g'Le loe'le 10e'Le log'le 10g'L€ Log'Le Loe'Le L0€"28 Log'Le S3JIAYIS LN3A3
88€'9Z 19€'20S 618°08% 890'0¥ £80°0% £80°0F £80°0% £80°0 £80'0F €80'0% £80'0F £80°0¥ £80°0F £80°0¥ £80'0% SNOLLVH3d0
(5ee'vs) gls'es Lyg'syl ise'zs 982’2t 9c2'zl [:TxAr 4N 962’2 982'Th 9e2'eh 9c2'eh 9£2'zL ] 48 [} Ar 48 9£z'z1 ONLLINYVIN
(821's) Ti8'eL 0s8'erL 906'LL $06'LL ¥06'LL $05°LL $06'LL $06°'L1 06’1} $06'81 0643 $06°'L} v06'LL $06'LL JONVNIJ
(voz'2) 098'c8 ¥30'08 eLLL TLV'L TLVL TLL 2LV L eLVL L eLV'L TL'L (7194 eLLL IALLNO3X3
SISNIAAX3 LO3FHIANI
(¥va's1) €0L'tLL'E  658°L66'L  66S'L¥ 089'9st 669'0vC  8L6'IZE  [56'96C 625'kSL  ¥s0'zile  L96'SEl 095'18L zsL'velL 986'LS 8L2'0S INOONI SSOUD Q3 LSNIravY
v86'LL 9l0'LEL 000'€02 cie'al L18'9L L16'9L 16°9L LL6'st Lie'el Li6'al LL6'9L L16'9L l16'9l 16'9} L2169l JNOONI Y3IHLO TVLOL
(CLL'y) ZLL'9L 000'2k 000t 000"} 000'L 000°L 000'} 000t 000'} 000'L 000'} 000°'L 000'L 000°L INOONI ¥IHLO
2697 80€'ch 000’8l 005"} 005'L 00S'h 005°L 00s'L 005'L 00S'L 005°L 00s'L 00s'L 00S°‘L 005'L TIVLN3Y LNSWJIND3
6v.'09 b52'LL 000'88} 00S'LL 005'LL 00S'Lb 005'L} 00S'LL 005’11 005°'4} 00S'LL 00541 005'41 00S'L} 00S'tLL SINALLNIONI 13MOWL
SLE'LL $89'ce ooo'se €16'C 16T 116'C 116 Li6'C L16'C LL6'C L16'C L16'C 116 L16'C L16C INOOINI LSIHILINI
FNOINI ONLLVHIAJO Y3IHLO
[CE) 189'086'L  658'88L'L  989'vZ evL'svl zgl'eez 190'LLE  0b0'082  ZL9'vEl LeL'S6L 050'6L1 £ra'vsl cez'2LL 690'¢ Los'ce SINODNI INIA3 TVLOL
{£20'cs) L20'v4S ¥S50'L6Y a¥s’9 $09've £5+'69 059's8 6.0'28 6L0'2¢ £06'2S 20L've 606'LY +88'or le9'e 8/2'9 INOONI AUVTUONY TVLOL
(so2) cl8'loL oLg'0! 0522 00L'LL S¥6'S oov'sl 00524 002'8 050'SL 056'L 00.2) [0Y) 005'2 osi'e IN3NdIND3
(869) 8¥0'L2 05€'9Z ooz 059't 0516 08L'y 050°C oeL't ooL'L 0e6 06.L'} 0.8t 00e ooz IvOlLO3T13
(oov*'0c) s8L'L6L s8.'99L 058 9g9'LL 562'9¢ sye'se 09.2's¢ 640°'LL SP6'6 062’9 66871 €0L's 09e'L €68'L H¥OLVHO0D23aQ
(9zz'9l) 926'2e 00L'9L 005’k ose'L osv'z 000’ osL osv's 000°2 00S'L 0sg osz'L 00¢ - ALT3AON
{ris'es) 6£1'06 sezg'ol L2 92s'¥ eel'L Lev's 68¢'6 £00'} coL'LL 6LL'Y psi'el o't 0s8'c 69¢ ONINILYD
080’ $06'88 +86'96 SE0'L o'y 188'L 88L'92 0c9'sL 1859 905'9 £59'C 919'¢ £28'LL Lie 90L SNOISSIONOD
IINOINI AUV TIIONY
(508°8EL) olo'sed'l  s08'/62'L  ObL'sh 6EL'SLL 62€'P5L LL'see 196'26} £65'20L  bET'THL 8v6'v6 yeL'otl ise'ol ez £€e5'/2 INOIN! LNIAT LO3HIC V.LOL
eev'le ZhL'by s/i'es orL'z 12’8} (128) L' 868'0L y1L's YE6'EL 019'9 (16€) oLL'L (850'2) (zot'e) IWODNI ADINGIS
(scz'o9t) 898'L6€'L  0€9'LE2'L  000°'SL 526'96 002's54 ooL'sie £€90°281 628'96 oog'szL 9c¢'88 sch'LLL §.6'89 00582 §29°0¢ AN3Y
IWODNI LNIAT 1031
(6£8'09) svl'0Ls LOE'6by 00L's 050'2S 0s8'1e 0sz'08 0o1'g8 oot'6e 059°'LS 000'1 008°2e 00€'6C 005'¥ 205°S FJONVANILLY
(G7)] :71 S0¢ 14 1e 14 ov 9¢ e e 62 € ¢4 9 8 SIONVINNOIYIJ/ISAVA LIN3AT
"YA IOVIIST 1350ang NOP AVIN ydv YN 834 NVl o3a AON 100 d3as onv nr
2002 Ad £00Z Ad
£007 ‘0¢ dunf 3mpuy 1ua) [oISLY
JUIIIRY RS WW0IT] PEIY

QuoyIny ZUAIY/uORIRALGY) Kuno)) Ju)j - spidey pussn

I pues) - DS



_MQWG“ =0y TIUSIET oL ~tstaz SRLBIL < V52 ¥5aL Wz OcZess Z5V60Z 7 o6t “TIVH NOLLIGIHXS - TV.0L)
=G S9Vect 0SCTh 53 SI9'L - K23 OB 2% (7T 1SV 8L 00T'SZ I3 & WIRILO 1VLOL
[ ) T 6E9'L 00z 055§ [7i43 - 85€ - (777 00LY o574 g [ SBORAO '7 SIUUWIas,
(o202} 920'2 z snosByey
{r29'0) 9'C 1 seaucq
ozy's saL'zy sa'ey osl's - (.73 1L 80LZ 5170 sLo'sc usi'sl 33 2} ATmwyrraeuas)
Use'sl ey 2075t 000t 008 88'c 819°2% - ues'd osTL 008's z > @ji0di03)
tot'ol 1010 ooy - - - i 17 27 8rs's 000's t sjzAnsay sjugy
250'88 sc2'e 96T'9T osi'z - " alc'c 8505} {sss'l) £99°9 o00's € L] 000} Jopun Ranbuzg,
{ayo'es) S5l 8t'c ost . oLl - (1243 - {7733 ST 005"L |3 T 000°L 4300
(529) (1434 0s9'c - - - - - {os2) 006'c 005 z v Bupsa)
1OC0 | GZZ55Y SIYsZY SITLL 0Sv0L i = (50 056'CS [T57) VSO L 3 Y SMOHS O118Nd V101
L) 180°sy ¥¥ic 05T oSyt ¥gS [=3 L 1S S26°0C 00571 9 3 SMOYS DUGnd DTN
(976’8} 9¥6'8 z $0)qqoH @ skoy
r2r'st) stk ' T spsidng|
(c15’s) 06Y'6L ue'es o5t 009 085"y - o'y 728's {rar's) 000'08 000'9) 9 E] 2noys Jeog
(022) zZe'z 5885'28 [ oot 09c’s - - " tse'L 655 sic'e 00s'’s z z sa[akaioN!
090’8 os0'e 8 - m |+ 8l {so1} 000's (4 4 - sjsniy
ss¥'s 5L soz'0z 141 000°2 - - [=Y4% 5re (gso's) 000'sb 005"t z z acuRps
rrs't) "s'L T Gujsnoy
(ssv't) Le'ez Yz ooy [173 125 5 | vz’ {oro’} 006's} ooo's c £ Moys jioo
(59} £88's 6zv's osy [ 058 - oy saL oz) oos'e 009'c c € S[US/MOYS Y—ID
(=21} 192t 895’06 00c's 006 obs'ot - 2Ly 1y's os5's 000"y 000'y2 4 1 Buntanu] 2 aaowo)ny
{osw) zae'ce e ozt ooL's sz'c - - ' (os2) s20'st 0002 1 14 uatrop |
fzes'n) ze'es TS oos’s o'y sco's - ny eyl (744 o00'ze ooo'zz ¥ 1 UoRDAUIRY @ spoog Buplods
313 812 0CTL osT'e o8z z90's - 00z ste'n) [ 4 1% 006'S [ £ SMoyS BUIPPIM
TTY'TL r9s'ss Le6'68 00Z'L o'z on'L - - cas's uak ooo'os oos'sT /3 v UIPITD P SWOH
g 780555 E6YEES SIP6Z =il 9Zve 15058 155 BeLed  seeeor ISTer ¥L 23 SAOHSIOVHEUSNOLNSANOD 1ViO0L
oLy 5 TWEL G (3 8062 185 R T3 ¢508 006’0 ] [T} SMOUSIPRI] IS
(ost’) 050"t . ¥ snoiBloy
{sey'gol) 98s'803 z BupOMPOOM
src's Sit's 005 [L18 s9L - 501 .- - sy [ z s
668°% Tis's nYL - o0} soL - - <14 (oss) S8’ 05T T € S2JQROH ¢ sA0),
) YL z oUsjIS|
ozs'L 0z8'L [1:3 oot't sm'c - 118 - o) [10 005 t IADS Pood 7
800's s00's 004 8 o0se - 8st - (o5 006t 000't z Bupsany
ez's wz'e 000’} [ o'z 85} 11 (528 ood's 000°L z sapmgn
res's ve's oo’k osk szy ssh - e} sy ooz z aaurinsyy
69L'8 s9r's oog ost ose - Sz - (s63) ooo'L oos't z seonned
{s81) yoc'Ly Sk'LY ooL oot'e ost's sit'h - {oss'y) 000're ous't € c U9 P Whojanad
on's ooz's ore'e ooz os¢ oS’ - oz'e 193 (185) ood'e 009z z z WIBJ ITIH T ISHPON
'8 zz9's 00s's ost (1] - zy {oss) 00s's osL't z uswsAcD
473 sst's 256’8 18 24 s - 14 -1} {ooy) sZ¥'e 00 4 4 Ausnpui fessung,
£og'Ls #0552 20£'e6 ool't 00s'L S'sz - oyv's - (ssr'c) 056'6S [ ] I3 € uopnQMIsG % Buisssaold poad
HE'EL (10419 oSl ooy 0ss°z - E--4 (>4 (¢ 2% ] asa'sl 208 14 - uofa3jold @34 g 1
{zv'e) eec'ss 906'6% 000't oo¥'L on's ] . saf's (cers) ooo'oy oo0'z € € uminagioy] $ aImiRoL]
(ove'rn) e'stl or'izL oog's 050’z aLk'yl 502’6 o0t (T3] 0s2'0s 000'z8 o -3
82'0y 8LT'0T 056 0035 orl'e *z ”y {oo2} o00'st 000't T - g
Lro's?) §29'sy 81502 ooy 008 599'9 - ste scr eg'y) - szn 002 € s uopannsuag ¢ Buipyng
{805} iz ssl'oz o0L's (.4 sTLT [-24 - on's} nso'rt BT z € e Jjuy @ Aneag
(er6's) sis’as o'yl 000"t oot 0¥'z - 18 sez {ooR) ool'tk 00s"s 4 [4 Bupjucg
(s68't3) 868'LL [ Bujuuey 2 auminapuby
LT 890'0E aLr’cs ogTy 00 sec’y - Ty 659 {ecc'y) 00S'TY osT's o 2z SUORUYOBLY
TO002Z A4 £00Z Ad JWadU) eluaauy [uoauy = Swpou) cou] -y uosu] ovuepuayy SUIAY SUIAF STIVH LEIHX3
FONVRIVA IWOINI IWOINI Jwudmby feopa0g J03ei099g KpaoN Bupagen UOISTW0D  IANS 190y oON BON
AIN3A3 ANIAT £ooz Zooz
£00L ‘0 sung Juppuy Jwap (R
Lrsunung suasg

Ruoginy vusiymopusauc) Lunol) juay - spidey puern
ANV pussH - HNS




_ Y50 062 T _ ig'e0L sz SL08L CTy ST99L BTZe Ve STSIEET 200 05% SOt 713 SONIGIING 11V - V101
0 V) 005¥5 E - 00L8T TV $9902 WYL 006ZLY i (3 ES HSTBWTTVH SOAZ0 - TV10L
_.Su.ﬂ. S09'cal sal'sy 003°L - - osZ'c . oys’z sis'2 000'sz 005'23 s E-4 SAN3IAI HS13M OSIN
(se5'cd) yZo'iez 629251 0sZ'e - - 0s6's a1 w's E x4 OS¥'E0} oso'zy [ L4 SINIAZ SONAIT OSIN
osZ' 420 £L9Y'B0Z ooe'sh - - - - e9'c ro9'sL 0sT'99} ooc'se ] »5 ANOHJWAS Y9
ars ses'ort /T'TSL 056's - - ooo's 3% oic's szo'oy QoL'se 000't9 [ sy QUNO YLVEHL AVMAYOUS
{598) zoe'sy me'Ty 00c'y - - - - p45] 520'9 056"+ oor's ] 9 V34O Y9
{920'e) 2289 i59's9 oos's - - - oL’} 926" S9c'is 055y oos'0z 113 13 13TIve ¥0
2002 Ad CO0T A4 SROONI SWOONI SWOONI SWOINI 3WOIN SWOONI SWOINI IWOON 30NVD SINIAS VYNIUV HSTBWTTVH 50A30
FONVRIVA SNOONI IWOON] ANSWJINDI  TYORLDIA 14V3218Y ALTEAON ONRIELVO  3OVNAA3Y  30IANIS WVINIY NILLY 400N
ANIA3 AN3AZ ANV 0003 13N

£OOZ "0F Suny Bupuz 1804 [e25)3
Aroununs Ju9a3
Rpopny TuayjuaRuasue) Aunod Jua)] - spidey pumin
WY PURIY - DRS




SMG - Grand Center

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2003

Budget Estimate
F/Y 2003 F/Y 2002 Variance

Salaries 759,857 689,044 (70,813)
Salaries Part - Time 1,086,106 1,082,339 (3,767)
Auto Allowance 21,790 17,782 (4,008)
Payroll Taxes 154,241 151,339 (2,902)
Employee Benefits 98,417 85,633 (12,784)
Pension 33,369 16,627 (16,742)
Union Expenses 75,270 73,839 (1,431)
Allocated Salaries (1,321,949) (1,327,266) (5,317

Total Labor Costs 907,101 789,337 (117,764)
Contracted Security 60,000 54,112 (5,888)
Meetings 19,370 14,182 (5,188)
Meals & Entertainment 9,510 7,779 (1,731)
Dues & Subscriptions 1,920 607 (1,313)
Professional Fees 20,750 17,360 (3,390)
Employee Training 10,000 8,329 (1,671)
Printing 8,400 5,985 (2,415)
Advertising 10,500 13,458 2,958
Trash Removal 33,600 27,009 (6,591)
Landscaping . - -
Armored Services 2,200 1,924 (276)
Exterminating 4,410 4911 501
Cleaning 15,000 817 (14,183)
Construction Costs 1,800 1,800
Repairs & Maintenance 108,150 112,855 4,705
Snow Removal 225 225
Supplies 150,872 124,661 (26,211)
Corporate Travel 4,000 3,127 (873)
Computer Expenses 65,000 37,253 (27,747)
Equipment Rental 4,500 3,401 (1,099)
Bank Service Charges 9,000 12,107 3,107
General Liability Insurance 40,501 45,741 5,240
Property Insurance 30,450 32,450 2,000
Insurance Expense 29,600 24,349 (5,251)
Local Taxes 3,600 - (3,600)
Printing & Stationary 3,000 1,344 (1,656)
Office Supplies 6,000 7,504 1,504
Postage 2,400 1,245 (1,155)
Parking Expense 18,000 19,254 1,254
Telephone 24,000 22,636 (1,364)
Utilities 516,000 479,372 (36,628)
Management Fee 234,000 225,000 (5,000)
Incentive Fee 68,000 68,000
Total Materials & Service 1,444,733 1,378,797 (65,936)
Total Indirect Expenses 2,351,834 2,168,134 (183,700)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

The base fee started with the new contract in F/Y 2002 as $450,000 split evenly between
the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena, This fee is subject to an annual increase based
on the change in the CPI-U. This budget assumes that the increase will be 4% for fiscal
year 2003,

The incentive fee is based on benchmark revenues for each of the two facilities. The Van
Andel Arena benchmark is based on the number set in the SMG Managerial Contract
which is subject ot the same annual increase as stated above for the base fee. The Grand
Center benchmark is equal to the budgeted total gross revenue for each fiscal year, The
incentive fee based on a percentage of the combined revenues in excess of the combined
benchmark. SMG receives 20% of the first $1 million and 25% above that. In no fiscal
year can the incentive fee exceed that of the base fee.

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds the total of $1,550,000 (Van Andel) and the
budgeted figure for the Grand Center.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2003 compared to the

‘expected fee for F/Y 2002,
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,240,147 (359,972) 880,175 1,375,379
Benchmark 1,550,000 (359,972) 1,190,028 1,043,839
Excess (309,853) - (309,853) 331,540

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,462,922 1,991,859 6,454,781 6,574,646
Benchmark Revenue 4,367,910 1,991,859 6,359,769 5,969,444
Projected Revenue Increase - - - 605,202
Incentive Percentage 20% 20% 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - - - 121,040

Total SMG Management Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 571,040




SMG - Van Andel / Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Allocation of Shared Salaries
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

This page outlines the allocation of personnel who have responsibilities for
the Grand Center and VanAndel Arena. In order to maintain two separate
sets of accounting records, there needs to be an agreement on the sharing
of some common expenses. These allocations have been reviewed as part
of the budgeting process and found that no changes in the allocations are
necessary and will remain the same as F/Y 2002,

Grand Center Arena
Position Allocation Allocation
General Manager 50% 50%
Director of Finance 50% 50%
Director of Operations 67% 33%
Director of Marketing 50% 50%
Director of Sales 100% 0%
Director of Event Services 100% 0%
Facility Maintenance Manager 67% 33%
Box Office Manager 30% 70%
Bookkeeper 50% 50%
Human Resources 50% 50%
GM Secretary 33% 67%
Asst. GM Secretary 67% 33%

Receptionist 50%

50%




SMG - Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

Capital Improvements

Building
Refinish Devos Stage Floor 50,000
Furniture/Furnishings
Cyclorama for Devos Stagehouse 12,000
Machinery/Equipment
Total Capital Request: 62,000

The above capital request is a continuation of projects that
were approved in the Fiscal Year 2002 budget, however, not
completed by the end of the fiscal year.

No new capital expenditures are budgeted for Fiscal Year
2003,




VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FACILITY BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item VIII



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Highlights
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

Overview

Fiscal year 2003 will be one of some change for the Van Andel Arena as the
Grand Rapids Rampage will be changing their schedule from the normal
May - August time frame to the February - May time frame. The Arena
continues to perform well nationwide.

Income

The Van Andel Arena is expected to show a decrease in revenue of
$120,000. F/Y 2002 will show the Arena host 25 concerts, which is higher
than the 22 - 23 we would expect, as well as, the change in the Rampage
schedule making it harder to schedule concerts during what has traditionaly
been our busiest time for other events (February - March).

The concert shortfall is expected to be be made up in part by the return of the
Ringling Brothers Circus, and an increase in the Griffins revenue due to the
new affiliation with the Detroit Red Wings.

Indirect Expenses

The Van Andel Arena is showing a nominal 2.5% increase in indirect
expenses due to inflationary increases.

F/Y 2003 marks the 7th fiscal year for the Arena, and no major changes are
seen for the operation of the facility, and expenses should remain constant,




(e99'L61) oLg'Ler’t  vi'ove’l  (1L18°%E) g6’ 698°ch l8l'sve 006°6LE 09i'v0z  Z.9'b4L sel'ozt  (6LL'L) 150’28  6ES'PEL 2£0°28
'L ZLI'LE0'e  b2S'ToL'e  €45'8SC  bbS'8sT L95'852  1p5'8ST  1p5'8ST L¥5'e5C  Lb5'8SC L¥S'8se Wps'sse Lps'sse 15°85¢ 1P5'852
(L12'g2) 001'682'L  LIE'ZLE'L  18L'60L  9L.'60L 9/'604  9.L'60F  9LL'60L  SLL'60L  9LL'60L  9..'60L g9/.'60L  9l2'60)  8ll'sdb  9LL'601
(seL'L) $96'vE 002'9¢ 290'c 8s0'e 850’ 8so0'e 8s0'c 850" 850°'S 850t 8s50'c 850 850t 8s0'c
(s69'8) SE8°L01 0ES'SHE ocL's oLL's oLL's 0iL'6 0LL'6 0LL's osL's oLL's oLL's oiL's oil's OLL's
(ez5'9) LIS'sL) 00L'8LL 8£8°'6 zva's Zve'e 8’6 zve's Tve's e’ Zv8's 8’ zv8'e 2ve's 28’6
(soL'61) 9p6'le0’s  Z69'l80°L  SPL°06 1£1'06 1£4'06 L£1°08 2£1°06 LE1'06 L£1'06 £1'06 LEL'06 LEL'06 LE1°06 2E1'06
16 168'SL) 008°sLL oiv'viL vey'yL yav'vl yey'pL ¥V vav'vl veY'vl ¥8¥'vL ¥ey'vl vyl ety YBb'PL
(890'%) 2¢8'291 006'99L zi6'el 806'c1 806'h 806'c} 806'CL 806'cl 806'cl 806'¢l 806'¢1 806'El 806'cl 806°'cl
(855'2) 196'88 52S'L6 6€9'L 929, 929°'L 9z9's 9z8'L 9z9'L 929°'L 929°'L 92z9'L 929'L 929'L g29°'L
(Lsz'ozt) Zee'eab'y  L.9'ThE'y  T9l’sez HE0'0BZ  Ocy'eot  82e'sos  ivbisle 10L'29¢  BL2'0ZE  6.9'8/€  Z28'9s¢  86S'syb  080°t6E  8.S'SHE
eve'ss 159'628'L  000'GLE'L  9/5°6SL  ¥8S'6SL 85’661  $86'66L  v8S'6GL  PBS'6GL  ¥BS'6GL  ¥BS'ESL $85'65L  PBS'6GL  $BS'6SL  HBS'6SL
(z61'8) /61'86 000°06 005", 005'L 005°2 005'L 005'L 00S'L 0052 005'L 00S'Z 005'2 005'L 0052
89582 20’9 000°SHZ siv'oe FAR T4 PR A4 Li¥'oe oz 24¥'02 Liv'oz Liv'oe L0z 1v'02 Lip'0Z Liv'oz
€sL've 1£2'59 000°06 005°L 005°L 005'L 00s'2 005°L 005'2 .00§'L 00s'L 005'L 005’2 00S°L 00s'L
pee'L 99115 000'628 0SL'eh osL'sy osl'sy osLEY osl'sy osi'sy osL'sr 0sl'sy osl'ey 0SL'Sh osl'sy osL'sy
sab'ze SL5°2e6 000's96 €L¥'08 Liy'08 Liv'os Liv'os Liv'og Liv'08 Liv'o8 Liv'og Zi'08 Liv'os Liy°08 Liv'os
(¥65°502) SeC'eea’e  1.9'2Zb'T  98L'b9 0s¥'0zi gv8'eyl  vhi'S¥E  IS8'8LZ LLL'SOE © vE9'0LE G606l 8ET'L6 pL0'08  96¥'ceC  H66'S8L
@it'voL) 06£°20¢'L  8¥6'2OE’L  SoOP'ZZ osy'sy SE6°2L 861'86L  SZe'eEl 88.'29L  8SL'OEL  968°LLL 1££'9S 06L'EL  2STOCL  058'86
Usy) le'ey 08L'Z¥ - 002 869'S ¥51°6 ove's 868°'S $88°'y 952'c ' 0se2'L - 829'L
(set'ie) siz'zee o¥8'0ge 0£0°'6 0€0'6 0£0'6 0LL'LE ove'LL 090'8} 090°'8} ovL'sh 0£0'6 085°2C 060°2¢ 098'vE
(s¢'6) £50'z8 8.5'2L si8 osL't Log'oL vi5'6 SHO'L 0£5'6 ric's 00¢'9 6si'e 00L'L ZoL's 2oL’
(sz0'c9) 6ZB'6L0'L  05.'9Ss 00S°LL 00528 00025 00L'Z¥L  00£'00L  00£'6ZF  006'86 009'Z8 aol'Ly 05Z's0lL  000°¢8 000°'09
(zs1'101) si8'sce’t  sel'vel’l  I8l'sE 0L6'LL L1£'s9 909'Z¥L  2€S'S8 6Zc0bl  9i¥'08 661°20L  L06°0F veT'syl  veelt vrl'L8
(500'%) (zs0's6s)  (£50°665) 182y (oe0'st)  (soz's¥)  (9LL'6L1) (leL'86) (egc6eh) (e09'sE)  (es8'eg)  (ee9ve)  (9L2%8)  (9sl'h) (s0¢'6)
pi'L6) lz6'0ge't  o0Bl'€Zl't  00S°ZE 000°L8 LL0'vLL  28l'99c  692'v8l 165'692  810'9LL  TSO'WIL  6ES'S9 005’202  000'sLL 25v'96
084’6 0.45'29L 0§0'2LL 0091} 005'81 0S.'€8 005'5ZL  005'66 000°£0F  000°)9 00059 005°'8E 000'LL ooL'Ly 000'EV
W £el gcl z € z 6} [-]8 1z oL 12" 9 (5] 9 s

VA DvVISI  IZsand NnF AV UdVY dvn g3d NVF 23a AON 100 d3s onv anre

2002 Ad

€002 Ad

(SS07) INOINI ALINIOVA 13N

SISNIdXT LOIFUION! TvIOL

QvaHY3ANO
MIVAAIS
ONLLVAS AYNXNT
3313440 X08
SNOULVYIdO
ONLLIMUVYIN
JONVYNIJ
IANLNOIX3
S3ASNIAdXI LOIYIONI

3IWOONI SSOH9D aalsnrav

JINOONI ¥3HLO TVIOL

JINOONI SNOINVTIIISIA
SIALLNIONI LDIL
3WOONI LSFYILNI
ONISLLIIAQY LNINYINU3L
ONLLVES AuNXN1

JINOONI ONILLVHIJO H3HLO

IWOONI LN3A3 TViOL

IWOINI AUVTTIONY TVLOL
Quvog 03ala
S3ILTINON
ONRIFLVO
SNOISS3ONOD
JWOONI AUVTHONY

INOONI LNIAI L0310 TVLOL
JWOOINI ITINYTS
IN3Y

IWOINI LNIAI LO3xa

JONVONILLY
SIONVIWIOSNID/SAVA LNIA3

o~

£00C ‘0¢ dunf 3mpugy ava) [oIs1g
935437 393pag

Auoyiny suly/uonuIAue) Auno)) jud)] - sprdey puern

BIALY PPUY UEA - DINS



|{res's0e) 592'€89°C $L9°L2V'T 08L°ZY 018’0t 8lSCTL 052'956 (250°665) [ 050°TLL 9Z1 cel TVLOL ONVHD on

{ 990%p cTT'20T 687 9VC 00§ 0056 109'LL 0SZ's9 886'L 00525} 0558 €l [ SNONVTI2ISIN TVLOL
(9622¢) 962°2¢ - - - - - - - - - } UBMWIOM 10} 3nQ Swil],
(+¥s'c) LS s - - s 00s'c " (szs's) 005°2 000 } l MoyS a1md)d JoLioH Kooy
| ¥1x4 - [§1>4 - - 0s¢ 0sZ's 19743 ooo'st 000's 2 Jeujwag Kemwy
vee'tl 856 z68'21 - - 8L 00S's 509t 000's 002'Z 3 3 1BARS3 JISNIX Ysi saje Jeug
(s8s8'0z) Z0L't9 Zig'oy - - sZ8'2 000's} 26T 000°SL osL't 4 14 sjanbueg snoduelaIsIN
yeT'L z99's8 918'26 oos DOS'Y 00L coo'ol [-Y2k 4% 00059 000'6E v s snojbjiey
861'cS - 86L's - 000's 0sL' 0005 (ess'eh) 000'SE 0000 4 ssadaay aspuold
vor's beca it 806°LL - - i~/ - MYT 000's) 009's} 4 z uopenpeg abajjod
(ec6'coc) sLL'vey'L ZvZ'090°L - 01911 szs'9lL 005°ZeE 205'99 000°SLY 005°L9L 33 [ SLU3ONOD TVLIOL
0Lz 289°eh 208'sS - 0£0°6 Si8 [ 1% 258 000'5Z 005'8 1 1 uepsuyo
(z6v'89) YET'VEL Z08'sS - 0£0's si8 005°24 255 000'sZ 0058 3 z Knunop
(139'20¢) &v2'9sT'L 8c9'8v6 - 0}5'eS) si8'pL 005°262 £5L'l9 ooo'szy 00S'P¥L L k<4 3oy
Z68°c0L TEL's6y $20°665 008 016Z€ 891’6 000’512 {bLe'viz) 000°919 005'LLL 8¢ [ SMOHS AINVS TVL0L
(586'0)) 902'c8 [X=%73 002 095°L 182 005'1€ (928'22) 000'ss 00012 € € SHINIL SISUOL
00z sh'vs 8b9'%9 002 - 88 00002 zy'sl) 00029 000’0} z z SJAPR Hing [BUO[SSIJ0Id
(126°2) 269'6S LLL'98 002 ozl's 004 00052 {sv8°21) 000'zy 0005}k z z $$0490j0 ajfysaaid
S60°L pLz'0s 929g'Ls 002 00Z'y SiE 005'2Z (ev8'21) 000'zy 0005 € v ssoJoeuALY
680'% sov'vy S6p'sy - 0i£'z s8¢ 000'vZ {ooz's?) o0o'Ly 000} 4 4 03poY S3UCIE pue sjing
L5v'9 . 15v'ST - 0s0'k sii ooo's [ x4 000'0Z 000'y 4 siIpRUY
e8Z'yL 82Ze'E 219'sy - 089'L 182 000Z1 {ose'sy) ooo‘os 000'9L 9 8 silel uobeag
(c20's) £69'Le ozo'sy - o9’y F4X:] 000°s 88l 000'0¢ ©o0's 13 3 23] uo B
10e's YoL'LYy 590'e§ - 0z5'T oov'i 000'8 avL'9 000'sE 000’8 ¥ 13 89} up suojdweyd
858 8.6'8t Z95'L9 - - e 000's2 {osL'8s) 000‘as 000'8Z 8 8 23} uo Asusig
09 9ye'oT 05602 - []2.x 4 ozy 000'8 (o82°2) 000'8% 00s5's 13 3 SISHO[IGOID WoMBH
25828 - z98'2g - - oot's oco‘os (sps'sd) 000's6 goo'oc 3 ssagosg Buybuiy
18¢e'0} SEL'LLG 811229 o8ty 008'9L 8L°SE 000'VYE (sz9'062) 08Z'SLY 00S'PSE 99 z9 SL1¥O0dS TV.LOL
06 000'ZZ 0602T - - 8L 000’8 eoe's 0000l o00's z 3 suawiEWNO] [leqyased ab3)j0D
L8 859'sL ose'lL - - 0s¢ 0052 086'L 0052 000y 3 b neqisyseg abajjo) s,uswopm
ovs's 's9 288'vL - 0os'al zi9 000'sZ -77:4% 000'0c 0000} 3 4 Bujpsaum Jeuolssajoid
2619 180'% 6.2'6 - - [-743 005 $09'L 000's 00§ 3 13 1jeqAB3II0A |2UO}SS0d
(z20'vZ) zL0've - - L uoseasald VAN
1> 45 9eL'LZ viViE 082 - 005’ 00052 ves'l - 000°04 |2 2 uosBIsAId THN
(85°d) 8st'y - - € sgjofe]d eBedwey
(69¢°8) £8c's L szE'L - - - {sve"18) peO'PL 000°ZL 6 3 S Jejnbay abed
(e61) Loz F4 vig - - - (gc0's) 9z’ o00's 3 L uoseasasd abeduey
(968'81) 968'8) - - - - - - - - - 4 sjjokeld suuo
£bo'st LeL'sLe oyB8°L9e 095°2¢ - 09.'6Z 000'9.Z {oo0's15) ozs'ove 000'0vZ oy oy uoseag Jeinbay suWLo
- - - - - - - . - - - - uosessald sulun
Z00Z Ad €002 Ad awoauy aiLlooU] au0aL) aloay] EOT R autosy aouBpUAY  SWIATF  SUBAT 3dAL INIAI
JONVIIVA INOONI ANOONI paeog 0opIA KanoN Gupagen UOjS532U0D ades jequay JOON JOON
LIN3AI ANIAZ £00Z 2007
£00Z ‘0¢ aun[ Bulpu3 Jea [eIstd
Apwwing JusA3g

Ruoyny eualy f uoguaauog Aunod juay - spidey puels
BUY [9PUY UBA - ONS



Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

SMG - Van Andel Arena

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

Budget Estimate
F/Y 2003 FIY 2002 Variance
Salaries 633,100 589,765 (43,335)
Salaries Part - Time 876,921 863,873 (13,048)
Auto Allowance 9,725 8,997 (728)
Payroll Taxes 152,030 144,741 (7,289)
Employee Benefits 127,350 105,528 (21,822)
Pension 44,250 38,650 (5,600)
Union Expenses 52,731 47,102 (5,629)
Allocated Salaries (860,000) (824,520) 35,480
Total Labor Costs 1,036,107 974,136 (61,971)
Contracted Security 205,000 196,009 (8,991)
Meetings 13,200 10,741 (2,459)
Meals & Entertainment 5,100 9,264 4,164
Dues & Subscriptions 1,300 1,250 (50)
Professional Fees 26,000 23,240 12,760)
Employee Training 12,000 9,335 (2,665)
Printing 30,000 24,785 (5,215)
Advertising 36,000 38,906 2,906
Trash Removal 15,000 16,340 1,340
Landscaping 3,500 4,748 1,248
Armored Services 3,600 4,048 448
Exterminating 4,000 2,971 (1,029)
Cleaning 31,400 27,955 (3,445)
Repairs & Maintenance 128,000 122,456 (5,544)
Snow Removal 0 - -
Supplies 181,100 187,456 6,356
Corporate Travel 7,500 2,512 (4,988)
Computer Expenses 65,000 70,870 5,870
Marketing Fund 45,000 40,708 (4,292)
Equipment Rental 15,600 17,379 1,779
Bank Service Charges 12,000 13,908 1,908
General Liability Insurance 69,485 68,631 (854)
Property Insurance 31,000 24,093 (6,907)
Insurance Expense 43,132 38,417 4,715)
Local Taxes 3,600 92 (3,508)
Printing & Stationary 11,000 7,005 (3,995)
Office Supplies 12,000 17,105 5,105
Postage 12,000 7,531 (4,469)
Parking Expense 19,100 22,112 3,012
Telephone 55,000 54,423 (577)
Utilities 774,800 745,698 (29,102)
Management Fee 234,000 225,000 (9,000)
Incentive Fee 52,000 52,000
Amortization 0 7,649 7,649
Allocated Expenses (39,000) (37,661) 1,339
Total Materials & Service 2,066,417 2,056,976 (9,441)
Total Indirect Expenses 3,102,524 3,031,112 (71,412)




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

Capital Improvements

Building

Lobby Duct Painting 35,000

Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000

Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000

Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 140,000
Furniture/Furnishings

Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000
Machinery/Equipment

Hockey Glass 20,000

Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500

Security Gate System 120,200 158,700

Total Capital Request: 368,700



SMG - Van Andel Arena / Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

The base fee started with the new contract in F/Y 2002 as $450,000 split evenly between
the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based
on the change in the CPI-U, This budget assumes that the increase will be 4% for fiscal
year 2003.

The incentive fee is based on benchmark revenues for each of the two facilities. The Van
Andel Arena benchmark is based on the number set in the SMG Managerial Contract
which is subject ot the same annual increase as stated above for the base fee. The Grand
Center benchmark is equal to the budgeted total gross revenue for each fiscal year. The
incentive fee based on a percentage of the combined revenues in excess of the combined
benchmark. SMG receives 20% of the first $1 million and 25% above that. In no fiscal
year can the incentive fee exceed that of the base fee,

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds the total of $1,550,000 (Van Andel) and the
budgeted figure for the Grand Center.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2003 compared to the

‘expected fee for F/Y 2002,
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,240,147 (359,972) 880,175 1,375,379
Benchmark 1,550,000 (359,972) 1,190,028 1,043,839
Excess (309,853) - (309,853) 331,540

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,462,922 1,991,859 6,454,781 6,574,646
Benchmark Revenue 4,367,910 1,991,859 6,359,769 5,969,444
Projected Revenue Increase - - - 605,202
Incentive Percentage 20% 20% 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - - - 121,040

Total SMG Management Fee 234,000 234,000 468,000 571,040




SMG - Van Andel / Grand Center
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Allocation of Shared Salaries
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

This page outlines the allocation of personnel who have responsibilities for
the Grand Center and VanAndel Arena. In order to maintain two separate
sets of accounting records, there needs to be an agreement on the sharing
of some common expenses. These allocations have been reviewed as part
of the budgeting process and found that no changes in the allocations are
necessary and will remain the same as F/Y 2002,

Grand Center Arena
Position Allocation Allocation
General Manager 50% 50%
Director of Finance 50% 50%
Director of Operations 67% 33%
Director of Marketing 50% 50%
Director of Sales 100% 0%
Director of Event Services 100% 0%
Facility Maintenance Manager 67% 33%
Box Office Manager 30% 70%
Bookkeeper 50% 50%
Human Resources 50% 50%
GM Secretary 33% 67%
Asst. GM Secretary - 67% 33%
Receptionist 50% 50%




Item VIII

NMENMERANDUIN

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

DATE: June 13, 2002

TO: Steve Heacock
Finance Committee Chair
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority

FROM: Robert J. White
Assistant City Maffager - Fiscal Services

SUBJECT: FY 2002 Revised Budget
FY 2003 Proposed Budget — Updated

Immediately preceding this item on the Finance Committee agenda you will find the FY 2003
“Facility Operation” budget submissions for the Grand Center and the Van Andel Arena as
prepared by SMG facility managers.

The attached FY 2002 Revised Operating Fund Budget and the FY 2003 Updated Proposed
Operating Budget consolidate Grand Center and Van Andel Arena financial activities with
those of the Authority’s administrative and capital replacement reserve accounts for the
purpose of providing a financial perspective for overall Authority operations.

Also attached are the FY2002 Revised Construction Fund Budget and the FY 2003 Proposed
Construction Fund Budget.

A preliminary presentation of this material was made to both the Finance Committee and the
full Board during regularly scheduled meetings in May, 2002. Consideration is requested for a
final review of the Operating and Construction budgets and adoption of same.

Attachments

ccC: Jana M. Wallace

caa2ndbudget.doc



GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
OPERATING FUND
FY 2002 REVISED BUDGET AND FY 2003 PROPOSED BUDGET

DRAFT

REVENUES

Facility Operations
Parking revenues
Interest on Investments

Capital Replacement Reserve Trfr
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Accounting / Auditing Services
Insurance - Property and Liability
Legal Services

Other Contractual Services
Meeting Expense

Supplies

Transfer to Construction Fund
Sub-total Services

Electricity

Steam

Water and Sewer
Sub-total Utilities

Building Additions & Improvements
Facility Equipment Acquisition
Sub-total Capital Replacement

Employee Wages
Employee Benefits
Sub-total Payroll
TOTAL EXPENDITURES'
EXCESS / (DEFICIT) OF FUNDS
FUND BALANCE - beg. of year

Transfer Excess Reserve 2

FUND BALANCE - end of year

UPDATED JUNE 12, 2002
DRAFT
Administration and Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
FY 2002 FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2002 FY 2002 FY 2003
Original Revised Proposed Original Revised Proposed
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget
$1,695443 $2,180,936 ° $2,170,975 $ 237,000 $ 419,071 * $ -

- 187,449 ° 107,772 - - -
100,000 42,440 34,880 40,000 30,560 25,120
570,357 - 184,418 (570,357) - (184,418)

2,365,800 2,410,825 2,498,045 (293,357) 449,631 (159,298)
20,000 24,500 25,635 - - -
15,000 25,000 ° 33,050 - - -
55,000 30,500 33,550 - - -

8,150 35,000 43,000 - - -
650 850 890 - - -
1,200 1,325 1,350 - - -
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - -
1,100,000 1,117,175 1,137,475 - - -
611,000 702,030 727,000 - - -
527,000 449,284 471,000 - - -
67,800 73,756 92,800 - - -

1,205,800 1,225,070 1,290,800 - - -

- - - 225,000 286,460 380,200

- - - 12,000 170,100 50,500

- - - 237,000 456,560 430,700

50,000 50,230 52,240 - - -
10,000 18,350 17,530 - - -
60,000 68,580 69,770 - - -

2,365,800 2,410,825 2,498,045 237,000 456,560 430,700

- $ - $ - $ (530,357) $ (6,929) $ (589,998)

3,000,000 3,727,023 3,000,000 1,155,636 1,053,603 1,773,697

- (727,023) - - 727,023 -

$ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 625279 $1,773,697 $1,183,699

Note 1: Expenditures do not include an allowance of $320,055 in FY 2002 and $5,000 in FY 2003 for depreciation expense.
Note 2: Balances in excess of $3,000,000 minimum required Operating Reserve are transferred to Capital Replacement Reserve
Note 3: Estimate has been adjusted since the original budget presentation in May 2002.



GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
CONSTRUCTION FUND

FY 2002 REVISED BUDGET AND FY 2003 PROPOSED BUDGET

JUNE 12, 2002

DRAFT DRAFT
Monroe Ave Relocation Convention Center Construction
FY 2002 FY 2002 FY 2003 FY 2002 FY 2002 FY 2003
Original Revised Proposed Original Revised Proposed
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget
REVENUES
State of Michigan ' $ 2,630,697 $ 467,568 $ - $ 27,369,303 $ 9,609,672 $ 2,138,974
CCBA Capital Contributions - 428,486 3,071,036 - 32,373,513 52,381,302
Transfer from Operating Fund - - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Miscellaneous Revenue - 23,153 - - - -
Interest on Investments 54,830 65,000 55,000 445,170 205,209 698,455
TOTAL REVENUES 2,685,527 984,207 3,126,036 28,814,473 43,188,394 56,218,731
EXPENDITURES
Architectural / Engineering Services 490,000 549,767 1,744,046 6,000,000 4,652,715 4,000,000
Construction - Material Testing - - - 400,000 591,322 600,000
Construction - GMP Contractor 2,175,527 357,440 1,133,925 21,425,973 35,363,332 47,063,549
Sub-total Contractors 2,665,527 907,207 2,877,971 27,825,973 40,607,369 51,663,549
Bank Fees - - - - (306) -
Insurance - Property and Liability - - - 40,000 42,670 53,338
Legal Services 15,000 2,000 10,000 50,000 8,000 10,000
Owner's Representatives - - - 285,000 230,553 270,870
Other Contractual Services 5,000 75,000 238,065 600,000 2,245,561 4,215,724
Sub-total Services 20,000 77,000 248,065 975,000 2,526,478 4,549,932
Electricity - - - - 38,376 -
Steam - - - - 11,877 -
Water and Sewer - - - - 1,869 -
Sub-total Utilities - - - - 52,122 -
Advertising / Promotion / Publicity - - - 5,000 - 2,500
Supplies - - - 1,000 500 500
Postage / Express - - - 500 100 150
Printing and Binding - - - 5,000 - -
Telephone - - - 2,000 1,825 2,100
Sub-total Supplies/Services - - - 13,500 2,425 5,250
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,685,527 984,207 3,126,036 28,814,473 43,188,394 56,218,731
EXCESS / (DEFICIT) OF FUNDS $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
FUND BALANCE - beg. of year - 337,230 337,230 - 422 166 422 166
FUND BALANCE - end of year $ - $ 337,230 $ 337,230 $ - $ 422166 $ 422,166

Note 1: Revenues are earned as expended

caabudget0203..ds jmw 05152002



Item IX

NMENMERANDUNM

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS

DATE: June 12, 2002

TO: Steve Heacock,
Finance Committee Chair
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority

FROM: Robert J. White
Assistant City Manager — Fiscal Services

SUBJECT: Extension of Bookkeeping Services Agreement With Beene Garter LLP

You may recall that Beene Garter was approved as the Authority’s bookkeeper for a one-year
term expiring June 30, 2002. Attached you will find a letter from Beene Garter dated June 12,
2002 wherein a proposal is presented for extension of the existing bookkeeping service
agreement through an additional one-year period ending June 30, 2003. The hourly rates
quoted herein increase generally by 3% over the current year authorization.

In addition to the letter from Beene Garter, you will also find attached immediately following a
tabulation of monthly bookkeeping service invoices from inception throught the period ending
May 20, 2002.

| would recommend extension of the Authority’s agreement as proposed in the letter from
Beene Garter.

Attachments

caabeenegarter.doc 061202



BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW
SUITE 600
GRAND RAPIDS
M I CHIGAN
49503-2679

June 12, 2002

Mr. Robert White

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Fourth Floor

300 Monroe, NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503

Dear Bob:

Thank you for this opportunity to provide a proposal for continued professional
services to Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (CAA).
We hope that this proposal conveys the level of energy, technical expertise
and commitment that our staff will bring to you as your business consultants.

Extension of Existing Services

Accounts payable preparation, bank reconciliations and monthly compiled
cash basis financial statements will continue to be handled by our Client
Accounting Services department at the following hourly rates:

Staff level (Julie Nino) $ 78
Senior Manager level (Roxanne Page) $ 176*
Partner level (Peggy Bishop) $ 231**
Clerical $ 66***

*  Anticipated monthly senior manager time — 15 to 30 minutes
**  Anticipated monthly partner time — 15 minutes
*** Anticipated monthly clerical time — 30 minutes

Several months ago we assigned Roxanne Page as the reviewer on your
account. We felt her governmental experience would best serve you. Her
billing rate is higher than the previous person assigned. Since her time is
minimal, this change is anticipated to result in additional fees of less than $50
per month.

The monthly interim cash basis statements do not include the activity of the
Van Andel Arena or the Grand Center.

T

F

616.235.5200

616.235.5285

BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAS » FINANCIAL SERVICES tiati(gdatjaittat?t0a]
INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com



Mr. Robert White

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

June 12, 2002

Page 2

At the end of the year, the CAA financial statements will be converted from the
cash basis to the accrual basis of accounting. In addition, we will maintain a
general ledger at year-end that will include activity of the Van Andel Arena and
the Grand Center.

We are also available to assist in certain year-end audit preparation by
providing whatever client assistance is required by your auditor.

We value the working relationship that we have developed with you, and
appreciate the assistance we have received. | want to emphasize the
importance our firm will place on continuing service to CAA and to affirm the
commitment of our people who will work with you.

We are confident you will agree that Beene Garter LLP has the desire and
resources to deliver the level of service you require. Please contact us at 235-
5200 if we may answer any questions or if you need additional information on
which to base your decision.

Very truly yours,

R o e

Beene Garter LLP
Your Partner in Service to the Community

" BEENE GARTER LLP



GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Analysis of Payments to Beene Garter LLP
Prepared June 10, 2002

Date
Paid Amount Description

08/14/00 1,897.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending June 30, 2000
08/28/00 194.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending July 31, 2000
09/28/00 1,133.00 Bookkeeping services for p/e September 22, 2000 (2 mths)
10/27/00 638.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending October 11, 2000
11/28/00 853.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending November 9, 2000
12/28/00 1,066.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending December 17, 2000
01/29/01 638.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending January 16, 2001
02/28/01 776.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending February 15, 2001
04/13/01 566.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending March 19, 2001
05/14/01 570.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended April 24, 2001
06/14/01 825.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended May 23, 2001
07/13/01 682.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended June 21, 2001
07/30/01 474.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended July 19, 2001
08/28/01 1,428.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended August 16, 2001
09/28/01 838.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended September 18, 2001
10/29/01 586.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended October 16, 2001
12/14/01 639.00 Bookkeeping services for period ending November 20, 2001
12/28/01 591.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended December 17, 2001
01/28/02 1,087.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended January 21, 2002
03/14/02 624.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended February 15, 2002
03/28/02 632.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended March 18, 2002
04/29/02 891.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended April 17, 2002
06/14/02 755.00 Bookkeeping services for period ended May 20, 2002

$ 18,383.00 TOTAL CHARGES FOR 06/20/00 THRU 05/20/02

$ 799.26 AVERAGE MONTHLY BILLING DURING THE PERIOD

$ 819.83 AVERAGE FY01 MONTHLY BILLING

$ 776.82 AVERAGE FY02 MONTHLY BILLING

caainvstopay02.xis jmw 061002



Item X

NVENMERANDUM

CITY OF GRAND RAPRPIDS

DATE: June 14, 2002
TO: Steve Heacock

Finance Committee Chair
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority

FROM: Robert J. White
Assistant City Mapdger - Fiscal Services

SUBJECT: Agreement to provide payroll services

Attached you will find a letter from Brian Ebel of Beene Garter LLP in which a proposal is
presented for extension of the existing payroll services agreement. The proposal includes a
modest increase over the previous year’s basic payroll and W-2 processing fee schedules.

| would recommend extension of the payroll services agreement as proposed in the letter from
Beene Garter.

Attachment

cC: Jana M. Wallace



June 13. 2002

Jana Wallace

Grand Rapids Kent County Convention Arena Authority

300 Monroe NW Fourth Floor
Grand Rapids. M1 49503

Item X

Thank you for your interest in continuing with Beene Garter's payroll services. Below is a quotation
estimating vour annual fee increase which will become effective October 2002. Thanks for processing
payroll with Beene Garter LLP Payroll Services.

Transmittal Report

Payroll Check Register

Payroll Checks

Departmental Report

Employee Master Update
Monthly General Ledger Entries

Monthly

Emplovee Master Listing
End of Month Transaction Summary

Additional Fees:

Bi-Weekly Base Per Per Per
Description of Service Charge Check Payroll Year
Basic Payroll 1 $2555| $2.05 $2760 $717.60
Tax Filing 32.00 384.00
Delivery - Mail 3.00 3.00 78.00
Estimated Annual Fees $1179.60
Our fee for basic payroll includes the following reports.
Per Pavroll Quarterly

End of Quarter Transaction Summary
Form 941

SUI Deposit Information

940 Information

Annually

Form 940
W-2 Proof List

W-2 Processing is a base fee of $95.00 plus $1.90 per W-2"s processed.

New Hire Reporting $2.80 per new hire.

If you have any questions or need additional information. contact me at 2355200. We look forward to

working with vou in the near future.

5.20)

Brian Ebel—Sales Manager. Beene Garter Payroll Services

BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW
SUITE 6 00
GRAND RAPIDS
M I CHIGAN

49503-2679

BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAS > FINANCIAL SERVICES

INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC

T 616.235.5200

f 616.235.5285

1.800.824.7882

www.beenegarter.com



VAN ANDEL ARENA WEEKLY Item XI
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Jun 19 | Rampage MS | Arena 6:00 PM Doors open...event begins
6P-6:20P Team practice
6:20 PM Patrons invited on field
7:40 PM Bar-B-Que line cut-off
8:00 PM Event ends
CAA JS | Banquetg A 2P-5P Operations Committee Meeting
Thur, Jun 20 Available
Fri, Jun 21 The Eagles AH | Arena 7:30 AM Riggers marking ftoor
8:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
7:00 PM Doors
8:15P-9:15P Show
9:15P-9:40P Intermission
9:40P-10:55P | Show
10:30 PM Load-out
Sat, Jun 22 Available
{ Sun, Jun 23 Rampage vs Georgia MS | Arena 12:00 PM Street party
1:00 PM Doors
2P-4:30P Football game
Hush Puppies JS | Banquet A 4:30P-6:30P Post-game banquet
Rampage JS | Banquet B/C 4P-6P Post-game reception
Rampage JS | Banquet D 1P-2P Blitz Kidz Club
Mon, Jun 24 Available
Tue, Jun 25 Available
Wed, Jun26 | Tom Petty MS | Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
Tom Petty MS | Banquet C/D 6A-8P Crew catering
Thur, Jun 27 | Tom Petty MS | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Tom Petty MS | Banquet C/D 6A-8P Crew catering
Fri, Jun 28 Available
Sat, Jun 29 Available
Sun, Jun 30 Available
Mon, Jul 1 Available
Tue, Jul 2 Korn MS | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Ko JS | Banquet C/D 6A-8P Crew catering
Wed, Jul 3 Available
Thur, Jul 4 4th of July Holiday (Closed)
Fri, Jul 5 Available
Sat, Jul 6 Rampage vs Chicago AH | Arena 4:00 PM Street party set-up
6:00 PM Street party
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Football game
Sun, Jul 7 Available
Mon, Jul 8 Available
Tue, Jul 9 Available
Wed, Jul 10 Available
Thur, Jul 11 Available
Fri, Jul 12 Cher AH | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Sat, Jul 13 Available
Sun, Jul 14 Available
Mon, Jul 15 Available
Tue, Jul 16 Available
Wed, Jul 17 Available
Thur, Jul 18 Available
Fri, Jul 19 Available
Sat, Jul 20 Available
Sun, Jul 21 Available




N ONILIIAN g avmygIn VS1/L0d NOSY¥VId SON
ONLLITN d0€:6-dL SYILHONVQ
AN ONILLIIN d0€:Z1-d6 MHD £/1 S.801 40 ¥IAA0 TYNOILLYNIYILNI
Sy ONILITN NOON-VS8 nig ONILITN ALLD ZL ANC R
4N DONILITN g AN YMAGEN VS1/100 NOSHVId SON
DNILIIN do01-dL S¥3LHONVA
dN NI JAON d1-vé MHD £/1 S. 90! 40 YIA@IO TYNOLLYNIILNI I1LATNLSANHL
JN ONILIFN AgUA VYMNAGIN VSL/LOd NOSYUVId SON 01 AN 'dIm
dN ONILLITN A YMAGIN VSL1/LOA NOSYVId SON 6 AT0( 'SAN.L
JA ONILIIN A WA VAAGIN VS1/.LOd NOSHV3Id SON 8 ATIN[ 'NOW
L ATI0L NAOS
9 AINM LVS
JN ONILITN AN YMVTIN VYSI/LOJ NOSYVId SON S ATNSL Nad
JN ONILITN 1M VMIFEN VSL/LOd NOSYVId SON ¥ A0S SINHL
IN ONILIIN FEMA VAT N VS1/10d NOSYVId SON £ A10F°aam
IN ONILIIN 19N VANFGIN YS.L/LOJ NOSYVId SON Z A0S 'SINL
dN ONILITN 1WA VM AT VS1/10d NOSIVId SON L AT0[ 'NOW
JN ONLLIIN /19T YMAGEIN VS.L/LOd NOSYV3Ad SON
1N0 FIAON d-dl
AN NOISSIS d1-V0l1 MHO €/ NOIDIT NVIRIFAY 0£ ANNS 'NNS
AN ONIIIIN g VAAEAN VS.1/10d NOSYVAd SON
Javiavd d¢ /AdIS1NO
dN NOISSIS dZ-Vé HD ¢/1 NOIDIT NVIRINY 6C ANNSL "LVS
AN ONILIIN AMIVMAGIN VS.L/LOT NOSHVId SON
NOISS3IS d0€:S-de
AN NI JAON dE-V01 /HD €/1 NOIDTT NVIRITNY 82 ANNS NI
JN ONILIIN 19 vmM g TN VYS.L/LOd NOSYVAd SON LT ANASL SUNHL
JN DONILIIN g WM VMAIGIN VYSL/10d NOSYVAd SON 9T ANNS ‘daM
JA DNLLIIN AW VMAAEIN VSL/1LOQ NOSY¥VId SON ST ANNS 'SANL
dN NI FJAON 18I YMNEEIN VS.1/L0d NOSUVId SON ¥ ANNI 'NOW
JN NI JAON 199N YMIEIN VS1/100 NOSYV3Id SON
1N0 dA0ON dv
NOISSTS TVIANIO dt-NOON
SY00a Voe 1l
ON IDIAYAS JIHSUOM VO1-V8 /HO AVMINY MIVMOH £Z ANNC 'NNS
NI JAON LIFIN YS.L/LOJ NOSIYVId SON
NOISS3S TVHINIO VI-d0€:L
SY0o0d dL
NOISS3S TVIINID ds-d0¢-Tl
s$900d NOON
ONILITN VEL11-v0eE 01
N ONILLIN VE1:01-VOE6 /HD AVMIAY UVMOH TZIANNS LVS
NI JAON AN YS.L/10d NOSHVId SON.
NOISSIS TVYINAD dIn-ds
SJY00a dL
N ONLLITN ds-d§ /HD AVMAY QIVMOH 12 ANNS Tad
N NI JAON dS-NOON )3 (3) AVMY QIVMOH 0Z ANNL "SYNHL
61 ANNM 'gIM
NOILINYLSNOD 23 NOLLONNA JNLL NOOY LINIAT ALvVd

T00Z AVIA - A DIAAM YIALNID ANVID




1€ AN AIM

0¢ ATIN( "SINL

: 6T AN 'NOW
1NO JAON d6-d¢ QN TE I
JN ONLLITN ds-vol [AQHD ¢/1'VM NOINNTI ATINVA YIOVA 8Z AN 'NAS
NINTENDID
14l ONLLITN vi-dZ /AQHO E/1'VM NOINATY ATINVA YIOVA LTATINSLVS
NN I1ETA
dN ONILITN aIN-do€:9 [AQHD ¢/1°VM NOINNTY ATINVI JIIOVA 9C A0l Tdd
ONILIIN NN
IN NI JAOW [AQHD €/1°'VM NOINNTI ATIAVA ¥IOVA ST AN "SANHL
YC ATOLTIM
€2 A0S SANL
1Nn0 IAON ainN-dv
oW SLIgIHXT d-NOON NYMHOD SJITHO TA1d IA CTATINL'NOW
S1IgIHXd dL-vil
ON NI JAONW V6-VL VMHO S4ITHO A1 IN [T ATA['NAS
)4 NI JAOW ds-vi [YMHD S43IHO TAIJ IN 0T ATINM "LVS
61 ATNM Id
81 ATNS "SUNHL
L1 A0S 'dIm
91 ATNf "SINL
SEATONM'NOW
¥ AT0f 'NAS
1NO IA0ON VZ¢-ain
FONVINIOIIId QIN-d0t:L
SY00d d0¢:9
0)4) NI JAONW V8 A2 ANOL $TNOS DALZYV
1NO JAON
ONILIIN d01-d0t:9 SYILHONVA
4N DONLLIIN d0€:Z-dI /HD €/1 S.90f 40 FIAUO TYNOLLYNITLNI €1 ATNf LVS
NOILLDNYULISNOD o] NOLLONNA JNILL JAOOY LINIAT aLva




